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Chairman’s Statement

ERE|E

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

After more than a year in turmoil, the global economy
and major stock markets have finally stabilized in the
year under review. It is pleasing to see the substantial
improvement in the results of the Group’s core areas
of business during the current year; culminating in a
consolidated profit of approximately HK$109 million
as compared to the consolidated loss of approximately
HK$345 million the year before. We have also managed
to expand our share capital base by more than a double
during the year through the issue of firstly 260 million
new shares upon conversion of 9 convertible notes and
secondly 44.6 million new shares pursuant to the exercise
of share options granted. Shareholders’ equity has
increased to approximately HK$651 million at the end of
the year from approximately HK$356 million a year earlier.

In recognition of the continual support of the shareholders,
the Board proposed a bonus issue of 3 new shares for
2 shares held. The Board believes that the purposed
bonus issue, which is subject shareholders’ approved, will
enhance the liquidity of the shares and strengthen the
Company'’s capital base.

PROSPECTS

In the Company's 2009 interim report, we commented
that although the turbulence brought about by the
financial tsunami appeared to have stabilized and signs
that a recovery has commenced, we cautioned that the
process was not expected to be speedy. Indeed, in the
first half of 2010, with the exception that Mainland China
which continued to pose respectable GDP growth, solid
rebound remained to be seen in other major economies
in the world. Unemployment rate in the United States, for
example, is still only marginally below a two digit figure;
and sovereign debt issues in countries such as Greece
continue to cast uncertainties on the pace of economic
recovery in the Eurozone.
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Against this background, the Group would exercise
caution and adopt a prudent and conservative approach
in conducting its business. We remain committed to our
strategy of diversification and broadening of the Group’s
long term sustainable income base. We endeavour to
make the Group financially solid and to put the Group
in a favorable position to capitalize on investment
opportunities as they arise. To this end, the Company
successfully completed a share placement in April 2010 of
109,184,800 new shares at a price of HK$0.99 per share
which raised net proceeds of HK$105.2 million and further
enlarged our capital base. The Group remains debt-
free and is in a strong liquidity position. We are actively
exploring suitable investment opportunities to enhance
the Company’s value to our shareholders. The Group is
currently looking into many projects including but not
limited to a possible investment in a renewable energy
related project which, if it materializes, has good potential
for long term growth and return.

APPRECIATION

We wish to thank our shareholders, business partners
and staff for their on-going support and commitment;
as well as our former Board members for their valuable
contributions past and present.

On behalf of the Board

Peter Temple Whitelam
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 July 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERE WKk DM

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

As anticipated in the Company's positive profit alert
announcement issued on 30 April 2010, the Group has
achieved a turnaround from loss of the previous year. Profit
attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 March
2010 amounted to HK$108.6 million, as compared to a
loss of HK$345.3 million last year. Turnover for the year
amounted to HK$241.9 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$107.0 million from HK$134.9
million for the previous year. The increase in turnover was
largely brought about by the turnover of HK$88.1 million
derived from the trading of securities for which a negative
turnover of HK$86.2 million was recorded last year; such
increase was partially offset by the decrease in sales of
the manufacturing division to HK$148.0 million this year
from HK$186.2 million for the previous year. The basic and
diluted earnings per share was HK$0.23, as compared to
the basic and diluted loss per share of HK$1.34 for the
previous year.

The recovery of the Hong Kong stock market which saw
the benchmark Hang Seng Index rebounded to 21,239.35
points at the end of the year under review from 13,576.02
points a year earlier had substantial contribution to the
turnaround of the Group’s financial results for the current
year. Benefitting from this recovery, the Group's securities
trading activities registered net realized and unrealized
gains of HK$106.2 million in respect of the year ended 31
March 2010, as compared to net realized and unrealized
loss of HK$225.2 million for the previous year when the
market was hard hit by the global financial tsunami. In
addition, a HK$80 million partial reversal of impairment
allowance in respect of a loan receivable was recorded in
the current year, as compared to impairment allowances of
HK$182.5 million made in the previous financial year.

The Group’s profit for the current year was reduced by the
impairment allowance of HK$48.7 million made in respect
of the Group’s 50% economic interests in certain forestry
land in Puer City in the Yunnan Province of the People’s
Republic of China through the wholly owned subsidiary of
Richful Zone International Limited. The Group has disposed
the project subsequent to the end of the financial year at
a loss equivalent to the amount of impairment allowance
made.
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Sales for the Group’s manufacturing business dropped
by HK$38.1 million or 20.5% from the previous year as
demand for the European Market has not recovered to
the previous level as the result of the economic downturn.
Contribution from this segment to the Group’s results was
HK$5.2 million, as compared to HK$9.7 million for the
previous year.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: Nil).

BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES

The directors of the Company have recommended a
bonus issue of three (3) new shares, credited as fully
paid, for every (two) 2 shares held by the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 29 July 2010 and
subject to the following conditions: (i) the passing by the
shareholders of the Company at a special general meeting
of an ordinary resolution approving the bonus issue; and
(i) the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange agreeing
to grant the approval for the listing of, and permission
to deal in, the bonus shares to be issued pursuant to the
bonus issue. Such bonus shares credited as fully paid will
rank pari passu in all respects with the existing issued
shares in the Company.

The Board proposes the bonus issue in recognition of
the continual support of the shareholders. In addition,
the Board believes that the bonus issue will enhance
the liquidity of the shares in the market and thereby
strengthening the capital base of the Company.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s total equity amounted
to HK$651.3 million (37 March 2009: HK$356.3 million);
net current assets totaled HK$567.9 million (37 March
2009: HK$309.8 million), which included cash and cash
equivalents totaling HK$75.7 million (37 March 2009:
HK$33.2 million). The Group did not have any outstanding
bank borrowings as at 31 March 2010 (37 March 2009:
nil).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

CURRENCY RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s securities trading and loan financing activities
are conducted in Hong Kong Dollar. For manufacture and
sale of goods segment, the Group’s largest sale market
is Europe, which alone accounts for around 44% of this
segment sale turnover. In safeguarding the volatile Euro/
United States Dollar currency risk, the management has
chosen to adopt a more prudent sales policy by mainly
accepting United States Dollar quoted sale orders,
which in turn the management can maintain a stable
currency exchange condition for normal trading business
development.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had more than 600
employees, around 93% of them were employed in the
People’s Republic of China for the manufacturing business.
The Group remunerates its employees based on their work
performance and with reference to prevailing conditions of
labor markets.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Mr. Peter Temple WHITELAM, aged 81, joined the Group
on 1 August 2007 and had been appointed as Chairman
of the Board on 7 April 2008. He is a specialist consultant
in global branding and international communications.
After graduating from Pembroke College, Oxford
University, he joined the BBC before winning a Fulbright
Scholarship to study educational radio and television
in the United States. Following four years at NBC-TV in
New York, he began a long career in advertising, creating
national and international campaigns for such clients as
British Airways, Unilever, Nabisco, ESPN, Colgate, Cadbury,
General Motors, American Express, Nomura Securities,
and the Bank of Montreal. Mr. Whitelam has worked as a
creative strategist in Boston, New York, London, Montreal,
Toronto, Tokyo and Taiwan and received international
awards for his ideas. Recently he has been developing
brand strategies both for companies and government
agencies. This is combined with his knowledge and
interest in documentary film. Mr. Whitelam has a longtime
acquaintance with Asia, having visited and worked in eight
different countries in the Asia Pacific region.

Mr. LO Yuen Wa Peter, aged 48, joined the Group in
May 2008 and was appointed as executive director and
acting Chief Executive Officer on 24 July 2008. He studied
Accountancy and obtained his professional qualification
in the United Kingdom. He is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has 25 years’ experience in auditing, accounting,
investment and financial management.

Mr. LAM Suk Ping, aged 53, joined the Group in April
2008. He holds a Master degree in Business Administration
from the University of Hull, the United Kingdom. He
has over 25 years’' experience in auditing, finance and
accounting, investment and business management.

Ms. SONG lJiajia, aged 30, joined the Group in June
2009. She holds a Master degree in Mathematics from
Harvard University in the United States and a Bachelor
degree in Mathematics from Beijing University in China.
She has previously worked for top international investment
banks, including Goldman Sachs & Co., Credit Suisse First
Boston, and has worked for PriceWaterhouseCoopers, LLC
in Structured Finance Group and has extensive experience
in financial market.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EEREEEEASEN

Mr. Eddie WOO, aged 38, joined the Group in March
2010. He was previously an Executive Director in the Asia
investment banking group of Oppenheimer & Co. Inc., a
North American investment bank with extensive operations
and experience in the Greater China region, and its
predecessor, CIBC World Markets. His responsibilities
included significant financing activities for Chinese
companies including initial public offerings, mergers and
acquisitions, private placements and other related advisory
work. Eddie joined CIBC World Markets in 2000 as a
research analyst. In 2003, he helped start Mekong Airlines
in Cambodia, serving as a Board Director and Chief
Financial Officer before returning to CIBC during early
2004 as a Director within the equity research group. Eddie
received his M.B.A. from the University of San Francisco
and his bachelor’s degree from the University of California,
Santa Cruz.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Frank H. MIU, aged 61, joined the Group in
December 2009. He graduated from Harvard Law School
and St. John’s University in the United States. Mr. Miu
is a member of the American Bar Association and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Aside from about 15 years of professional experience in
accounting and law, Mr. Miu has extensive management
experience in financial services, publishing and printing,
food and chain restaurants, cold storage as well as
property-related businesses.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Dr. Agustin V. QUE, aged 63, joined the Group in January
2010. He holds Ph.D. and MBA degrees, both majoring
in Finance, from the Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, USA. He
has been involved in the field of finance for more than
35 years as a private equity investor, merchant banking,
corporate and development finance professional in
Jakarta, Hong Kong, Singapore, Boston and Washington,
DC. He is currently based in Jakarta, Indonesia, where he
is corporate finance adviser responsible for mergers and
acquisitions, new investments, business development and
investment banking activities to an Indonesian holding
company with diversified interests in agribusiness, property
and financial services. Prior to Jakarta, Dr. Que worked in
the financial sector in Hong Kong for 12 years. Dr. Que
started his career in finance in Washington DC, USA with
The World Bank, over a period of 10 years. His last posting
was Senior Investment Officer in the Capital Markets
Department of the International Finance Corporation, The
World Bank’s private investment arm.

Mr. Robert James IAIA Il, aged 41, joined the Group
in June 2010. He holds a Bachelor of Arts from Central
Connecticut State University in the United States and has
Master degree in Real Estate from the University of Hong
Kong. Mr. laia has over 11 years’ experience in the real
estate and equities market and lived and worked in Asia
for over 20 vyears, primarily in Seoul and Hong Kong. In
addition to extensive experience in private equity real
estate, he also traded Asian equities at Samsung Securities
in Seoul and Societe Generale in New York.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHAN Oi Ling, Maria Olimpia, aged 66, is the
founder of the Group. Ms. Chan was the chairman of the
Company up to 7 April 2008. After resignation from the
Board, Ms. Chan remains a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company so as to facilitate her to give advice and
pass on her valuable experience in the manufacturing
and sales of goods divisions’ operations. Ms. Chan has
over 40 years' experience in the manufacture and sale of
accessories for photographic products.
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Corporate Governance Report
SEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance
practices of the Company are crucial to the smooth and
effective operation of the Group and safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders. The Company has compiled
with the code provisions which set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 March
2010, except for certain deviations as explained below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs").
The brief biographic details of the directors is set out in
the Directors and Senior Management Profiles on pages
9 to 11 of this Annual Report. The Board has established
two Board Committees, namely Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee. The Board meets regularly
to discuss on overall strategy and review the financial
and operating performance of the Group. Attendance
of the Board Meetings and the meetings of the Board
Committees for the year ended 31 March 2010 is set out
below:
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Z8g DHRENZEGLFHEZES -
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No. of meetings attended/held

HE/ BHEERY
Board Audit Remuneration
Meeting  Committee =~ Committee
EEg ERZEE FHZES
Executives Directors HITES
Peter Temple Whitelam (Chairman) Peter Temple Whitelam (/&) 6/10 - -
Lo Yuen Wa Peter (Acting Chief Executive Officer) — EILE (HLE7THAEH) 1010 - -
Au Yeung Kai Chor (resigned on 9 April 2010) BEHT (R=E-ZFMANLBEHT) 5/10 - -
Lam Suk Ping MR 9/10 - -
Song Jiajia (appointed on 16 June 2009) RER (RZEENESATABERT) 5/10 - -
Eddie Woo (appointed on 30 March 2010) HRE (N-Z-ZE=[=1+HEZT) 0/10 - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors ("INEDs") ﬁi#iﬂﬁﬁ%
Frank H. Miu (appointed on 28 December 2009) 2% (RN-_ZZAE+-A-+/\BEZT) 2/10 02 11
Agustin V. Que (appointed on 27 January 2010) Agustm V. Que
(RZE-ZF-A-THREZ{E) 2/10 02 0/1
Robert James laia Il (appointed on 18 June 2010) Robert James laia |l
(RZE-ZF A+ \BEZT) - - -
Chan Sze Hung (resigned on 3 May 2010) BRLE (R—ZE-SFRAZAFHT) 2/10 212 0N
Kristi L Swartz (resigned on 29 December 2009) Kristi L Swartz 210 12 on
(RZZZNFTZAZTNBEMA)
Hui Wai Man, Shirley (resigned on 14 June 2010)  #E& (R-T—-ZTFATNBEET) 3/10 22 1/1
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The Board determines the overall strategies, monitors and
controls operating and financial performance, analyse
and formulate strategies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group’s strategic objectives. The Board also decides on
matters such as annual and interim results, dividend policy,
director appointments, significant changes in accounting
policy, material contracts and major investments. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
of overseeing the Group’s day-to-day operations to
management executives.

The Company confirmed it has received from each of
its INEDs an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the
Company considers them to be independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. During the
year, Mr. Peter Temple Whitelam acted as the Company’s
Chairman while the role of Chief Executive Officer was
performed by Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Board currently has three INEDs, all holding
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of
the Listing Rules.

Code Provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive
directors should be appointed for specific term, subject to
re-election. The INEDs of the Company are not appointed
for specific term but they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings
of the Company. Pursuant to Bye-law 87(1) of the current
Bye-laws of the Company, each director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at the annual general meeting. This means that the term
of appointment of the directors, including INEDs, cannot
exceed three years.

Corporate Governance Report
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SEERRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee is principally responsible
for formulating the Group’s policy and structure for all
remunerations of the directors and senior management
and providing advice and recommendations to the Board
of the Company. The Remuneration Committee comprises
the three INEDs of the Company. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee are consistent with the
terms set out in the relevant section of the Code. During
the year ended 31 March 2010, one meeting has been
held by the Remuneration Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is principally responsible for
reviewing and supervising the Group’s financial reporting
process and internal control system and providing advice
and recommendations to the Board of the Company.
The Audit Committee comprises the three INEDs of the
Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2010 and for the six months ended 30 September 2009,
and recommended such financial statements to the
Board for approval. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are consistent with the terms set out in the
relevant section of the Code.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has not set up a nomination committee for the
appointment of directors.

In accordance with Company’s Bye-laws, the Board is
empowered at any time to appoint any person as a
director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board. Any director so appointed
shall retire and be eligible for re-election at the next
following annual general meeting. The criteria for selecting
a director are mainly based on the candidate’s quality
which includes, but not limited to, his/her qualification,
experience, professional knowledge, ethics and integrity.
During the year ended 31 March 2010, four new directors
were appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board.

FMEES

FHZESXTERRANEAREEHESRLS
BEERABMBFMZBERERE  YRAAR
RAESERHEALEERZS FHMEEEA
RRR=ZZWUIFPTESTEK - HTNEEE
F) B 128 0 (] B2 <7 RIJ AR A B0 o0 P 3 A B3 #E 8 [ 4R
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B IFMITE R -

EZZEBECEHARERE_T-TF=H
=S+ -BUEFEREBEZE_ZETENFNA=TH
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Mg HmK - BT E SN BEEE S TR
#B oy Pk A B S E AR T
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the "Model Code”). On specific
enquiries made, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors adopted by the Company.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the remuneration
paid/payable to Mazars CPA Limited for audit and
non-audit services rendered to the Group amounted to
HK$1,552,000 and HK$451,000 respectively.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges that they are responsible for
the preparation of the Company’s financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as of 31 March 2010 and of the results of
its operations and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor, Mazars
CPA Limited, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on page 24.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibilities for the Group’s
internal control system and has adopted a set of internal
control procedures to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, minimize the exposure to risks, to safeguard
assets and to ensure the quality of internal and external
reporting and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Company had
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system. While no material accounting and internal control
weaknesses were noted, the review had identified certain
areas relating to the Group’s investment trading and loan
financing activities where further improvements to existing
procedures can be made.
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SEERRE

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established its own website (http://
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/mascotte/index.htm) as a means
of disseminating information to the shareholders.

The annual general meeting also provides a useful channel
for shareholders to communicate directly with the Board.
All shareholders have 21 days’ notice of annual general
meeting at which the directors are available to answer
questions relating to the Company’s affairs.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the annual general
meeting on each substantially separate issue, including the
election of individual director.

The right to demand voting by poll is communicated to the
shareholders by way of circulars of shareholders’ meetings.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company
and is principally engaged in trading of investments and
loan financing. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
loan financing, manufacture and sale of accessories for
photographic, electrical and multimedia products and
property investment.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2010 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 26.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and
movements in share options during the year are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in the Group’s investment properties
and property, plant and equipment during the year are
set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are
set out on page 104.
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EEEHS

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserve as at 31 March 2010 were as
follows:

KRR 27 Ikf#iE

HE-T-BE=A=1—0 A2AZEE
0

2010 2009

—E-FF “EENEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

Contributed surplus BERA% 72,201 72,201
Accumulated losses 28 (270,637) (372,695)
(198,436) (300,494)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(a) the company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the Company’'s would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Peter Temple (Chairman)
Whitelam

Mr. Lo Yuen Wa (Acting Chief Executive Officer)
Peter

Mr. Au Yeung Kai (resigned on 9 April 2010)
Chor

Mr. Lam Suk Ping

Ms. Song Jiajia (appointed on 16 June 2009)

Mr. Eddie Woo (appointed on 30 March 2010)

REARE-NAN—FQ8E (EER) &
RAIZEHBGRA T IR - A - £ TIER
T ARAAFERIRNEE - FAEDIK
BEd@mes

(a) ARFEREHIRMKEEELERHE
EREE

(b) ARBZAEREBEESELMINES
& BEITBRA MR R E R A -

EERBRBEEHN

AEERAERRENHEAMI 2 AAFES
mF

HITEE
Peter Temple (/%)

Whitelam %t &
ETLELEE (KBTI ARZE)
BSREE  (R-E—ZTHENABNBEMT)
MR

RERK L (e

ZEAFANATNBERE)
HRIRR e (7 z

T-TFE-A=-+AEERT)
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Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Frank H. Miu (appointed on 28 December 2009)
Dr. Agustin V. Que (appointed on 27 January 2010)
Mr. Robert James laia I (appointed on 18 June 2010)

Mr. Chan Sze Hung
Ms. Kristi L Swartz

(resigned on 3 May 2010)
(resigned on 29 December 2009)

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley  (resigned on 14 June 2010)

In accordance with Bye-Laws 86(2) and 87 of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter, Mr. Eddie
Woo, Mr. Frank H. Miu, Dr. Agustin V. Que and Mr. Robert
James laia Il shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive
director is the period up to his retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2010, the interests of the directors and
their associates in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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EEEHS

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company REATNEBERTFRE
Percentage of
issued share capital
Number of of the Company
Name of director Capacity ordinary shares held HAEQR ST
EEpE 14 FEEBEREE REBESLE
Mr. Lam Suk Ping Personal interests 300,000 0.05%

MRS 8 A=

In addition, as at 31 March 2010, certain directors also
held outstanding options to subscribe for the number of
ordinary shares of the Company as detailed below:

4

o R=F-FF=A=+—0 ETH
TR 4R 1T 0 2 B R A A K A R X B
B HEST

Percentage of
issued share capital

Number of of the Company

ordinary shares HADF]

Name of director Capacity in the Company 2RITRAE

EEnR 54 RRBAEERHE BoL

(note)

(Baz)

Mr. Peter Temple Whitelam Personal 500,000 0.08%
Peter Temple Whitelam %4 EA

Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter Personal 1,000,000 0.17%
EILESLLE & A

Mr. Au Yeung Kai Chor Personal 1,000,000 0.17%
B8R k5 R4 o A= & A

Mr. Lam Suk Ping Personal 1,000,000 0.17%
MR S £ AA

Note: The percentage is calculated on the basis that the options
held are fully exercised and by reference to the number of
issued ordinary shares of the Company as at 31 March 2010.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Wi BRI RERERETE RS EART
KT —FF=A=+—HZERTERRHA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2010, so far as is known to the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company, the following
persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares which fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or who are, directly or indirectly interested
in 10 per cent. or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at a general meeting of any member of the Group.

(i) Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares
- long positions:

Directors’ Report

EEEHRS

FERR

RIE-ZF=A=1+—B BRARBEEFR
T2TBRAEMA U TAL (TEREARA
EEREBITHAR) R KB RD + %
BARER 7 MRERGIEXVEFE2 M3 882
X RARRWE 2 BRmIORE  KEE KM
EREBAREABR TEARBEMKE AR
ZERRE EREZEMBERRAEE10%K

PA bz #Eas

(i) REROREBEROPZEDS - HF&:

Percentage of

issued share

capital of

Number of the Company

ordinary HAQT]

Name of Shareholder shares held Capacity ERITR

RREH FrFEEREA 1 KESDLE

Willie International Holdings Limited 53,035,800 Interest of a controlled corporation 8.98%
BN PR 1 AR B PR A A G AEER

Willie Resources Incorporated 53,035,800 Interest of a controlled corporation 8.98%
ZESEE R

Rawcliffe International Limited 53,035,800 Interest of a controlled corporation 8.98%
SR A

Nice Hill International Limited 53,035,800 Interest of a controlled corporation 8.98%
XEHAEER

Pearl Decade Limited 53,035,800 Beneficial owner 8.98%

Note:  Willie International Holdings Limited (stock code: 273), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, is interested in the
share capital of the Company indirectly through its direct
wholly-owned subsidiary Willie Resources Incorporated and
its indirect wholly owned subsidiaries Rawcliffe International
Limited, Nice Hill International Limited and Pearl Decade
Limited.

ERmBEBA

MIEE : BAIBRBRIZERRBR AR (RAOMRE : 273) B—
MBI ETMRAR EREEEZ2EWNBAR
Willie Resources Incorporated } £ 54 & & I
&~ ®]Rawcliffe International Limited * Nice Hill
International Limited & Pearl Decade LimitedfH

BEWARRAZIRAE S -
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EEEHS

(ii)  Interest in members of the Group:

(i) RAEKERERRP2ELS :

Percentage of
registered capital
of group company

Name of shareholder Name of group company EEEAF
REERE SERTERE ZMEXRBDL
MR E N EREERAF] Mascotte Zhi Hao Photographic Equipment 10%
(Hui Zhou) Co., Ltd
S EERERR AT
Dongguan City Qiao Guang Industrial Dongguan Tak Ya Leather Goods 23.1%

Group Company

Manufactory Limited

REMBAEXEERRAT] RERHNERBARRF

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company are not aware that there is
any person (other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company) who, as at 31 March 2010, had an interest
or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested in
10 per cent. or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
a general meeting of any other member of the Group.

DEALINGS IN THE COMPANY"’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2010, excluding the net gains
from the sale of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, the percentages of the Group’s turnover attribute
to its largest customer and five largest customers were
10.2% and 38.0% respectively. The aggregate amount of
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 48.4% of the Group’s total
purchases and the amount of purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier was approximately 21.0% of the
Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest
in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of
the their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors,
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 March 2010.
CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group has not made any charitable donations during
the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the balance
sheet date are set out in notes 25(a) and 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Peter Temple Whitelam
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 July 2010

Directors’ Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBE RS

BAMAZARS

To the shareholders of
Mascotte Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Mascotte Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 26 to 102, which comprise the consolidated
and the Company’s statements of financial position as
at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit and to report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

Mascotte Holdings Limited SHTEEE AR /A5 ® Annual Report 2010 3R
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 7 July 2010

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate number: P04793

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mETEBARSE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZ —-=

—BF=-A=+—HLFE

2010 2009
—B-%F —ETNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE TET AT
Turnover R 4 241,871 134,872
Cost of sales HERA (104,084) (143,514)
Gross profit (loss) EA (18) 137,787 (8,642)
Other income HAWA 6 850 44,290
Net unrealised holding gain (loss) on BAFEFABREZ
financial assets at fair value through B EELRBREE
profit or loss Wz (B1R) F8 18,087 (139,008)
Impairment loss on assets held for sale HIELEBERERE 25 (48,742) -
Selling and distribution costs HE K SHR A (7,737) (8,742)
Administrative expenses TBF (71,444) (49,547)
Reversal of impairment loss (Impairment B E i & FE UL A SUREE 1B
loss) for loan and interest receivables B m CRiEERE) 22(a) 80,000 (182,500)
Gain on fair value changes on investment  RAYE AT EEE 2
properties g 1,711 360
Finance costs BE R AR 7 (5) (43)
Profit (Loss) before taxation BansAl (E8) 8 110,507 (343,832)
Income tax expense FTiSHiR S 10 (1,657) (1,458)
Profit (Loss) for the year REERF (E8) 108,850 (345,290)
Other comprehensive income Htt2EBA
Exchange differences on translating MERINEE ERZT
foreign operations - 3,200
Total comprehensive income (loss) FEEZEAKRA (BE) 8%
for the year 108,850 (342,090)
Profit (loss) attributable to: F‘éfﬁiﬁ?&ﬂ (BH) :
Owners of the parent NAER A 108,631 (345,273)
Non-controlling interests 3'5? e A 219 (17)
108,850 (345,290)
Total comprehensive income (loss) FEE2HEBA (EE) 258
attributable to:
Owners of the parent UNGIEZ=DN 108,631 (342,135)
Non-controlling interests 3'5? e i 219 45
108,850 (342,090)
Earnings (Loss) per share BRRER (BE) 12
Basic EHR HK$0.2338 7T HKS (1.34)%8 7T
Diluted e HK$0.237%8 T HKS (1.34)% 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

At 31 March 2010 A—ZE—FF=F=+—H

2010 2009
—E-TF —ETNE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE FEx FAT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties REME 13 20,350 18,639
Property, plant and equipment W - BER&E 14 5,050 5,948
Prepaid lease payments BNEERE 15 4,703 5,368
Goodwill FEES 16 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets A EREEE 17 45,000 20,000
Loan and interest receivables FEMCE TR R B IR B 22 11,929 -
87,032 49,955
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAVEFTABRE L
profit or loss BB E 19 357,648 152,576
Inventories 7E 20 8,727 5,586
Prepaid lease payments BNHEERE 15 665 665
Trade and bills receivables FEUE 5 IE & W EE 21 20,258 24,358
Loan and interest receivables FEME SR R FE IR B 22 50,285 105,920
Other receivables and prepayments HAh fENGRIB R IB I8 23 19,513 20,782
Bank balances and cash SRITEGR MRS 24 75,720 33,228
532,816 343,115
Assets classified as held for sale PEBHELESE 25 79,242 -
612,058 343,115
Current liabilities p =t
Trade payables ENES50R 26 9,327 7,548
Other payables and accrued charges Hitn eI R &R 22,161 14,962
Income tax payable e ETISHL 12,642 10,839
44,130 33,349
Liabilities directly associated with assets HABARIEHESE
classified as held for sale BEREHZEE 25 42 =
44,172 33,349
Net current assets REEERE 567,886 309,766
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRARDER 654,918 359,721
Capital and reserves RAER #E
Share capital ARAR 27 59,052 28,592
Reserves 1 592,202 327,684
Equity attributable to owners of the parent B RARHEA ARG 651,254 356,276
Non-controlling interests R R o 3,664 3,445
Total equity s 654,918 359,721

EEEeRN T ZEFELALAMERKRET
WA MIESRREFERE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 7 July 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Lam Suk Ping Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter

MFEE ErESRLE
Director Director
EE EE
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Statement of Financial Position

B ISR R

At 31 March 2010 R=Z—ZFF=A=+—~H

2010 2009
—E-FF —EBETNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET THET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M R NMRE 14 31 37
Available-for-sale financial assets [t HE B EE 17 25,000 —
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR ZIHE 18 89,261 89,261
114,292 89,298
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value AT EFABRE
through profit or loss BB E 19 351,492 134,167
Loan and interest receivables FEUE TR K FE MR T B, 22 = =
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG 35 149,656 136,912
Other receivables and prepayments H fh e UG 0B K B N SRR 23 8,474 843
Bank balances and cash IRTTERIIRE 24 47,104 18,789
556,726 290,711
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges H b fE T 518 M BT B 5,088 2,074
Amounts due to subsidiaries N NG ] 35 89,191 89,601
94,279 91,675
Net current assets hEBEEFRE 462,447 199,036
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRREAERE 576,739 288,334
Capital and reserves BRAR &
Share capital R& R 27 59,052 28,592
Reserves e 517,687 259,742
Total equity AR 576,739 288,334

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

EEeRN T ZEFLALtAMAERRET

Directors on 7 July 2010 and are signed on its behalf by: B WA TINESRRESSR

Mr. Lam Suk Ping Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter

MRFEE ERELRE
Director Director
EE EE

Mascotte Holdings Limited SHTEEE AR /A5 ® Annual Report 2010 3R



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBER

Year ended 31 March 2010 HE =

Attributable to the owners of the parent

—BF=A=1+T—HLFE

BARKEEAELE
Enterprise Share Non-
expansion option controlling
Share Share  Special Translation  Reserve  reserve  reserve Accumulated interests
capital  premium  reserve  reserve fud RECE  BRE losses  Total  FER Total
BA  RGEE KARE RERE RS fE Wk RAER fit & &it
Notes  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
W FAr TEr T TEr TR TR Thn Tér TAr  TEr  TEn
Note (a) Note (b)  Note (b) Note (¢)
Kz Q) MEb)  MEO)  MEO
At 1 April 2008 RZEE\FRA—H 190616 517,582 47231 10,575 1,084 1,083 - (162,050 606,121 3400 609,521
Total comprehensive income FERERAERE
for the year - - - 3,138 - - - (345273) (342,135) 45 (342,090)
Issue of shares on rights issues, R TR
net of expenses (&%) 95308 42,654 - - - - - - 137962 - 131982
Release of special and translation ~ AHENBA AR
reserves upon disposal of BERRIRER
subsidiaries HERE - - (3330 (1230 - - - - W56 - {sm)
Capital reorganisation, BAEH (MBRX)
net of expenses (257,332) - - - - = = 257,332 = = =
At 31 March 2009 RZZENE
=R=1+-H 28592 560,236 13,901 1371 1,084 1,083 - (249991) 356,276 3445 359,721
At 1 April 2009 RZZENENA-H 28592 560,236 13,901 1371 1,084 1,083 - (249991) 356,276 3445 359,721
Total comprehensive income FREEANALE
for the year - - - - - - - 108,631 108,631 219 108,850
Recognition of equity-settled ANEREEY
share-based payment BOIES 32 - - - - - - 1219 - 12199 - 1219
Issue of shares upon conversion of AT ARE 5k
convertible notes, net of expenses  B4TR(A (MBFR) 276) 26000 104,000 - - - - - - 130000 - 130,00
Issue of shares upon exercise of  TEBERERZTRG
share options 27(b) 4,460 49,649 - - - - (9,961) - 44148 - 44,148
At 31 March 2010 R=2-%%
=R=t-H 59,052 713,885 13,901 1371 1,084 1,083 2,238 (141,360) 651,254 3,664 654,918
Notes: B EE -
@) The special reserve at 1 April 2008 represented the difference (a) REZZEZNEFNA—BZ2FRREEERRRDE

between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by
the Company and the aggregate nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation on 5 September 1997. On 24 July 2006, the
Group acquired assets and liabilities from the substantial
shareholder of the Group by way of acquisition of a subsidiary
at a discount of HK$33,330,000, which represented the
excess of fair value of assets and liabilities acquired through
the acquisition of a subsidiary over the consideration paid
and was deemed as capital contribution from the substantial
shareholder and credited to special reserve. During the year
ended 31 March 2009, the deemed capital contribution of
amount HK$33,330,000 together with cumulative translation
reserve related to the disposed subsidiary has been released
in full.

Reserve fund and enterprise expansion reserve are reserves
required by the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") applicable to a subsidiary of the Company in
the PRC for enterprise development purposes.

The share option reserve relates to share options granted
under the share option scheme. Further information about
share-based payments is set out in note 32.

(©)

ﬁﬂx$2w§£ﬁa$ﬁﬁ hWMtFANERBEEE
AMBREBZHBRARZRATMELERE 2=
o RN-_TTNFELA-+MMA - ZSE@ﬁﬂ?z
#77%33,330,0008 TWiE — R B R A MASE
ErvFrEREREEEEBE  MEEEBIE
— XM BARKBEERGE 2 A TFERBBE
REZFEE  WERAEEERIEE R ARR
B NBE_EEAF=A=t—RAILEE
fRAEEE33,330,0008 T R BEBEE HEHB A
AZ 2FHAEFEEREED -

RREEEBREXBHEDARANPEARLM
B (B —XMEARETBER 2 B
BIRERBEERMR 2 o

BREFRFEEREBREG RO CBRES
M- BRARNNRZE—FERERHEI2
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Statement of Changes in Equity

ERmB2EX

Year ended 31 March 2010 B E —ZE—ZFF=fA=+—HILFE

Share
Share Share option Contributed Accumulated
capital  premium reserve surplus losses Total
kx  ROGE BRERE S BY RZHEE ait
Notes ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
it TiEx TAL TEL THET THET TiEx
At 1 April 2008 R=EE\ENA—H 190,616 517,582 = 72,201 (283,002) 497,397
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FE2HEELR - - - - (347,025 (347,025
Issue of shares on rights issues, ARG (NRES)
net of expenses 95,308 42,654 - - - 137,962
Capital reorganisation, ERER (MRFEX)
net of expenses (257,332) - - - 257,332 -
At 31 March 2009 R-EENF=A=1—H 28,592 560,236 - 72,201 (372,695) 288,334
Total comprehensive income FERENALE
for the year - - - - 102,058 102,058
Recognition of equity-settled ANEREE 7 I
share-based payment 32 - - 12,199 - - 12,199
Issue of shares upon conversion of EATARZERETRN
convertible notes, net of expenses (brF%) 27(a) 26,000 104,000 - - - 130,000
Issue of shares upon exercise of TEBRER R TRD
share options 27(b) 4,460 49,649 (9,961) - - 44,148
At 31 March 2010 RZE-Z£=8A=1+-H 59,052 713,885 2,238 72,201 (270,637) 576,739

Note:

September 1997.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of the Company’s subsidiary
at the date on which the Company reorganisation became
effective and the nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company issued under the Company reorganisation on 5

Mt © MABBREARRMNERRRNARREAEALRZ
BZHGERRESEARBAR-NANEFNLAR
BEBAEEMBITZIRAZHECMHER -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BE=F—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXYK
Profit (Loss) before taxation BAnEH (E8) 110,507 (343,832)
Adjustments for: EfEL A THZ -
Bank interest income HRITA WA (82) (87)
Interest income from loan receivables W E Rz FIL WA (3.417) (24,206)
Dividend income from listed investments ETRE 2R EWA (1,363) (764)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEE 2,054 -
Interest expenses FEFAX 5 43
Impairment allowance for other receivables — E & Y FX 18 7 35 (E B 5 - 416
Reversal of allowance for inventories FLAF & B O] B - (252)
(Reversal of impairment loss) Impairment FEWE R & EIFI B2
loss for loan and interest receivables (REEERD) REEBE (80,000) 182,500
Impairment loss on assets held for sales FELEEEZRERR 48,742 -
Release of prepaid lease payments A ERIERE 665 665
Depreciation of property, Y% BENMRZEIITE
plant and equipment 1,576 1,667
Loss (Gain) on disposal of property, HEWE MEMEREZ
plant and equipment B () 33 (2,870)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB ARz W - (40,708)
Net unrealised holding (gain) loss on BATES ABREZ
financial assets at fair value through MR EEZRERFR
profit or loss (=) BEFE (18,087) 139,008
Equity-settled share-based payment AR EE 2 BRI 3R 12,199 —
Gain on fair value changes on "EYHEANFEES) 2 W
investment properties (1,711) (360)
Operating cash flows before movements in  &3E & & BRI 2
working capital KERENE 71,121 (88,780)
Changes in working capital: LEESE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFESABRERZ
profit or loss MIEEE (186,985) (5,656)
Inventories FE (3,141) 2,907
Trade and bills receivables FEW B 5 7R K N R IR 4,100 (2,218)
Loan and interests receivables JE W B R % FE R B 123,071 (62,500)
Other receivables and prepayments H At YR IE K TR RIB 1,269 1,978
Trade payables JERTE 5 5KIA 1,779 (5,723)
Other payables and accrued charges Hh A< 5008 K fE ST B A 7,203 5,270
Cash generated from (used in) operations LS (TA) 2He 18,417 (154,722)
Interest received from loan receivables W E R 2 EWFIE 4,052 25,039
Dividend received from listed investments EMiIREZBRARE 1,363 764
Tax refunded (paid) RE (BfY) 18 146 (113)
Net cash from (used in) REEKFRE (TR 2
operating activities HEFE 23,978 (129,032)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZ —-=

—BF=-A=+—HLFE

2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXH
Addition of property, plant and equipment NEYE - FENMERE (720) (1,190)
Disposal of subsidiaries k=) =N = (349)
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hj%%¥ &= &
plant and equipment RIEPE IR 9 4,352
Addition of available-for-sale financial assets A& A HEMEEE (25,000) (20,000)
Interest received EFIE 82 87
Net cash used in investing activities BREXEKFTRBREERE (25,629) (17,100)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Proceeds from issue of new shares on BB IR BT PG E
rights issue, net of expenses () - 137,962
Proceeds from issue of new shares RBATE B R T
upon exercise of share options AR5 P15 5038 44,148 -
Interest paid EAFE (5) (43)
Net cash from financing activities MEXBAEREER 44,143 137,919
Net increase (decrease) in cash and RERERBESEEB ZEM
cash equivalents OR4) F5 42,492 (8,213)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHzBEREFRLER
of the year 33,228 41,426
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GINKE e SR Ak By o2 L - 15
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZAERERARLER -
of the year, representing bank ERITEHRRAS
balances and cash 75,720 33,228
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BEZE=Z—ZFF=HA=1+—HIFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public company incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the directory of the annual
report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
is principally engaged in loan financing, trading of
investments, manufacture and sale of accessories for
photographic, electrical and multimedia products and
property investment.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

These financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2009 financial statements. The adoption of the new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and the
Company and effective from the current year had no
significant effects on the results and financial position of
the Group and the Company for the current and prior
years, except certain presentation and disclosures of
consolidated financial statements items have been revised.
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

1. —RER

AR AE—BRBEENSHREERAFFR
SR ABRAE HBROEEEHARS
FARAR ([BZAT]) FH o AARZ S
EERTBLEMS VI EERER Y AT
5% o

AREREMBAR ([AEE]) TBREER
BME WEEE RHE ERMZHEEREML
2 BERHEARYERE -

AP BEHREARNRB 2 e EREABTZS ©

2. FESTHEX

AP RRIBBEEBY B HREED ([FBY
BHREER]) FELAREARAINEFBAQF
Bl 2 HBEREMME - EBMEHRE R
RIEFMBEBEREMAE ([BEEMAE))
B AR EREAMBHREER - BB S
ZR| ([EEGER]) M2k - AMBHRKRIT
NEBMRAES EMRAZERBWERI -

RERAUBRR CELER T AFPHRRK
PIERMMZ SRR — 2 - RMEARB R AR
ABEBABBRFERERZHGKETE
BMBHRELER  HAKERARBARFE R
BEFEZFERMBERRL BERNZE - I
REMBHRRTETEEAZEREFELR
Sh o REBERM Z T2 G BERB N T ETT
Bt -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 &Z—

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRS

HKAS 1 (Revised): Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) requires transactions with owners to be
presented separately from all other income and expenses
in a revised statement of changes in equity. The revised
Standard however allows non-owner changes in equity
to be shown in a single statement (the statement of
comprehensive income) or two statements (the income
statement and the statement of other comprehensive
income). The Group has elected to prepare one statement.
In addition, the revised Standard requires that when
comparative information is restated or reclassified, a
statement of financial position as at the beginning of
the comparative period, in addition to the statements
of financial position as at the end of the current period
and the comparative period, should be presented. Since
the Group and the Company did not restate comparative
information during the year, this new requirement has no
impact on these financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27: Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Amendments to HKAS 27 remove the distinction between
dividends distributed from pre- and post-acquisition profits
from the definition of the cost method and replace it with
a requirement to recognise all dividends received in profit
or loss once the entity’s right to receive the dividend is
established. As from 1 April 2009, all dividends receivable
from subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities
are recognised in the Company'’s profit or loss regardless of
whether they are made out of the pre- or post-acquisition
profits. The carrying amount of the investment in the
investee however is assessed for impairment as a result of
the investee declaring the dividend. In accordance with the
transitional provision in the amendment, the new policy
is applied only prospectively from the current period and
thus no restatement is made to prior periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BEZE=Z—ZFF=HA=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 7: Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

Amendments to HKFRS 7 require additional disclosure
about fair value measurements and liquidity risk. The
fair value measurement disclosures are presented in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements, and the
liquidity risk disclosures are not significantly impacted by
the amendments. The Group has taken advantage of the
transitional provisions set out in the amendments under
which comparative information for the newly required
disclosures about the fair value measurements of financial
instruments are not provided in the financial statements.

HKFRS 8: Operating Segments

The Standard replaces HKAS 14: Segment Reporting. It
requires segment information to be reported based on
internal information used by the Group's chief operating
decision maker to evaluate the performance of operating
segments and allocate resources to those segments and
replaces the requirement to determine primary (business)
and secondary (geographical) reporting segments
previously identified under HKAS 74. Adoption of this
standard did not have any effect on the financial position
or performance of the Group. The Group determined that
the operating segments were the same as the business
segments previously identified under HKAS 14.

Improvements to HKFRS (2008)

Improvements to HKFRS (2008) contain improvements to a
number of standards aiming to remove inconsistencies and
clarify wording in the standards. The adoption of those
improvements had resulted in a number of changes in the
details of the accounting policies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=H=1+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is historical cost, except for investment
properties and certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair value.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interest represents the portion of profit
or loss and net assets not held by the Group and are
presented separately in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position, separately
from owners of the parent. Losses applicable to the non-
controlling interest in excess of the non-controlling interest
in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests
of the Group except to the extent that the non-controlling
interest has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

For the year ended 31 March 2010 B2 =—Z—ZEF=A=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses. The carrying amount of the investments
is reduced to its recoverable amount on an individual
basis. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the Group’'s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and
is tested annually for impairment.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 &Z—

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Goodwill (Cont’d)
Impairment testing on capitalised goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the Group’s
relevant cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated profit
or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives which are determined
by the period over which it is expected to bring economic
benefits to the Group. The intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they are available
for use and their estimated useful live of 47.5 years.

The Group reviews the estimated useful life and
amortisation method for these intangible assets annually
and makes adjustment when necessary.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BEZE=Z—ZFF=HA=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably
and on the following bases.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from
properties let under operating leases, is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Handling fees income is recognised when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant services
have been rendered.

Net income (loss) from the sales of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised on the
transaction date when the relevant sale and purchase
contract is entered into.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=H=1+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Investment properties

Investment properties, which are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation, are measured
initially at costs including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at its fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the year in which the item
is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire
fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land. The premiums
are stated at cost and are amortised over the period of the
lease on a straight-line basis to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BEZE=Z—ZFF=HA=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill))

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

As lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

As lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 &Z—

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Leasing (Cont’d)
Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, leasehold land which title is not expected to
pass to the lessee by the end of the lease term is classified
as an operating lease unless the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
in which case, the entire lease is classified as a finance
lease.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. They are carried at fair value, with any
resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are (i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; (ii) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (iii)
derivatives that are not designated and effective hedging
instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BEZE=Z—ZFF=HA=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont’d)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss if (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a
different basis; or (i) they are part of a group of financial
assets and that are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (iii) they contain
embedded derivatives that would need to be separately
recorded.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At the end of each
reporting period, subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and bills receivables,
loan and interest receivables, other receivables and bank
balances) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment loss. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=H=1+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this category
or not classified in any of the other categories of financial
assets. They are measured at fair value with changes in
value recognised as a separate component of equity until
the assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or
until the assets are determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
equity is transferred to profit or loss. Available-for-sale
financial assets that do not have a quoted market price in
an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are stated at cost less impairment loss.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed
in subsequent periods through profit or loss when an
increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BEZE=Z—ZFF=HA=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an
amount comprising the difference between its acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any previously recognised
impairment loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value
of available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition
of impairment loss is recognised in equity. Reversal of
impairment loss of available-for-sale debt instruments are
reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value
of the instrument can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at
cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss shall not be
reversed.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 &Z—

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities and equity (Cont'd)
Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible notes is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component is
recognised as the equity component. Transaction costs
that relate to the issue of a compound financial instrument
are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the note is
converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with
the carrying amount of the liability component at the time
of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
note is redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to
retained profits/accumulated losses.

Mascotte Holdings Limited SHTEEE AR /A5 ® Annual Report 2010 3R

—BF=-A=+—HLFE

2. FESHBE ®)

SRMIA (&)

MHEEERRE (&)

AT SRR

RASATRRS BRRLRE L TRRRS

= MELRMETZRHHKE RREE K
B R T
CON LRy

JWT’E?E/—\_ﬁ{i}Eﬂ‘}I
7 KR AERR >

RBERERR  IBRRERZAGBIHDRAK
MERARENRREFE  WIREARERS

WHEREHEZRBEERERN TSN XL
| e ﬁﬁ?%?ﬁlﬁﬁﬂjé?/\ﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁj D H) & 58
EﬁEE/L\EHX$g_ EITH Dilﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ'gi
E@X%)ﬁ$?¢z§§ﬂﬁﬁ REHNDELAIEAG
ERIRREE S

-E‘IED‘ BABBEAANTIR - LBESROR

PREER 2 M B R X ThE B ' R A ROAE
Hﬁ** PTRENHRETER  BEEREE
SRS LE

° E\\,ﬁﬁ

oK 3 i I

\Eﬁ

R

HEBEEL R IEARFERERLBERE
EB%ZEEE{E%%%inZK&HxT (B - 1ERAT

BTN 2RE - MEBERER - BIEXNRHE
REEEEEREEN R5ER -



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

For the year ended 31 March 2010 B2 =—Z—ZEF=A=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities and equity (Cont'd)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and income tax payable are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly
in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdrafts, if any.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=HA=1+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity.

Mascotte Holdings Limited SHTE LB HR /A5 ® Annual Report 2010 3R

2. FESFHBE ®)

BiIE

PRS2 B S 4 3R AR FE AN A 1R SR AE AR IR 2 48 AT

ARBMNRBRFABRRTRNTE - BRH
i M 2B AR AT S AR Jh R ATE
BIREE AL F 2 B SR 3 A H B 2 WA BB X
HE  BNTERERRTXMBT2EE - XK
B FrAE 2 ANEIBA R IR E R RS £k
ERAERZHEFE -

ELERBIRGEEMBRREEMBERAE
ERETERRVEN ZHERERE 2B 2
MR WARBEAR - BEHRBERE—
AT R RIS Z R - MELTHEAER
7 R 70 ] BE B 8 R Ao ) A A 3K S mJ #1100 ¥ By
ZRRNER - MEREZHAEREXVI L ER —
AAZERATGNRNETEN 2R FHNE
MEERBBEMEL  MTEEREHEEK
BE-

EIEBE S (8 T3 I 2 IR A PR 2 R
BiERIS 2R - [ IE A B A 12 IR L BB
290 R ERES A AL T RA A R NIEE - A
eI -

EXEMAEE CSRAEERNSREPIRER
WA BRI LR B 59 M8 SR i Al AU @ 2 B0 5k
#By B ER BN T E L AE R -

BEEFBEREANBEREXEREERHD
PR E - ELEH AR BRFRANR T AR
AR - MEMN B B R A R R R AT AR Z
TR HE MR - ARER AT BRETRRIE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiEZE=Z—FF=H=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised
directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are expressed in Hong Kong dollars using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (translation
reserve). Such translation differences are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation
is disposed of.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ—Z—ZF=HA=1+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans/
state-managed retirement benefit scheme/the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as expenses when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Long service payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payment under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior periods.
The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method and is discounted to its present value and the fair
value of any related assets including retirement scheme
benefit, is deducted.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’'s employees and consultants receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees and consultants
rendered services in exchange for shares or rights over
shares. The cost of such transactions with employees and
consultants is measured by reference to the fair value
at the transaction date. The fair value of share options
granted to employees and consultants is recognised
as staff costs and consultancy fee respectively with a
corresponding increase in a reserve within equity. The fair
value is determined using applicable valuation techniques,
taking into account the terms and conditions of the
transactions, other than conditions linked to the price of
the shares of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZE=Z—FF=HA=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)
Equity-settled transactions (Cont’d)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
year in which the performance conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees and
consultants become fully entitled to the award (i.e. vesting
date). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
the review, with a corresponding adjustment to reserve
within equity. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it
is transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of services, the type or
class of the customers, the methods used to provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ—Z—ZF=HA=1+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Related parties

A party is related to the Group if

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled by,
or is under common control with, the Group; or
has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or has joint control over

the Group;

(b) the party is an associate of the Group;

(@) the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a

venturer;

(d)  the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group;

(e)  the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d)

or (e); or

()  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity

that is a related party of the Group.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about the carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZE=Z—FF=HA=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Cont’d)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRS that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed below.

Allowance for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the carrying amount of
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and make
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items identified
that are no longer recoverable or suitable for use in
production. Management estimates the net realisable value
for inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions.

Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability of the
accounts receivables and loan and interest receivables. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each customer/borrower. If the financial conditions
of these customers/borrowers were to deteriorate and
result in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowance will be required.

Fair value of investment properties and unlisted convertible
notes

Investment properties and unlisted convertible notes are
stated at fair value based on the valuations performed by
independent professional valuers. In determining the fair
value, the valuers have based on a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates. In relying on the valuation
reports, the directors of the Group have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuations
is reflective of the current market conditions.
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B TS ERAR MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 & Z—

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs
that are not yet effective for the current year, which the
Group has not early adopted. The directors are in the
process of assessing the possible impact on the future
adoption of these new/revised HKFRS, but are not yet
in a position to reasonably estimate their impact on the
financial statements.
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HKFRS 1 (Revised)

Amendments to
HKFRS 1

Amendments to
HKFRS 1

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiEZE=Z—FF=H=1+—HIFE

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Cont'd)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

3. BERAVMBHREENZRREE @)

1 @:%%ﬂitﬂfHﬁZ?ﬁﬁaﬂﬁéZiEﬁﬂF‘sﬂi
2

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 2 RZZEZNFLtA—HHZZE—ZTF—HF—HB=%
or 1 January 2010 2 1B RR 2 FEEEAER
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 RZZE—EF—-A—Hak 2 ERBZFEHRAE
2010 5
b Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 4 RZE—ZEF-_A—HazE&RRZ2FEHREE
2010 2w
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 5 RZZE—ZF+ A Bk ERR 2 FEEREE
3
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 RZTE——F—A—Hak 2 ERB ZFEHRAE
2011 2
Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January / RZE—=F—HA—Haz&RRz2FELHREE
2013 %
4. TURNOVER 4. EXH
2010 2009
i —FENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividend income from listed investments Bz KRB A 1,363 764
Interest income from loan receivables FEWE 2 A B HRA 3,417 24,206
Handling fee income FEBWA - 5,000
Gross rental income He B A 854 4,937
Net profit (loss) from the sales of financial HERAFETABRERZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss WBEE T (BE) F58 88,143 (86,246)
Sales of goods HEE M 148,094 186,211
241,871 134,872

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The directors have been identified as the chief operating
decision makers to evaluate the performance of operating
segments and to allocate resources to those segments
based on the Group's internal reporting in respect of
these segments. The directors consider loan financing,
investments, manufacture and sales of goods and property
investment (i.e. rental of properties) are the Group’s major
operating segments. Segment results represent the profit
before taxation earned or loss incurred by each segment.
The following analysis is the measure reported to the
directors for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

5. Zo¥EEH

BEEOHRAERLEREL RASEAH
ZENFE T NBRE  FEEEPERBERD
RERFZENE BEERAERRE - &
B BEREEEQAYERE (AYERS)
DAEETELENE DELBERSHER
M BAEFKEE BB THIMEBRT
B (EADPRERRIGEDERE 2 EE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B TS ERAR MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 & Z—

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Operating segments of the Group comprise the following:
(i) Investments: Trading of investments
(ii) Loan financing: Provision of loan financing services

(iii) Manufacture and sales of goods: Manufacture and
trading of accessories for photographic, electrical
and multimedia products

(iv)  Property investment: Holding properties for rental
and capital appreciation

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all property, plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payments, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sales financial assets,
loans and interest receivables, trade and bills receivables
and certain other receivables and prepayments. Segment
liabilities include trade payables and certain other payables
and accrued charges.

Revenues and expenses are allocated to the reporting
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortization of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment results is
profit before taxation. To arrive at profit before taxation
the Group’s results are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditor’s remuneration and other head office
or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
profit before taxation, management is provided with
segment information concerning revenue, interest income
and expense from cash balances and borrowings managed
directly by the segments, depreciation, amortisation, and
impairment losses of and additions to non-current segment
assets used by the segments in their operations.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Segment revenues and results for the year ended 31

March 2010

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by reportable segment:

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiEZE=Z—FF=H=1+—HIFE

5. 2¥EER @)
HE-_Z-TF=A=1+-BLFEZIENR
P E S

TRAAEERAZFI\| 2 RENEED
I

Manufacture
and sales of
Loan goods Property
financing Investments %R  investment Consolidated
EXmE BE HEEM MERE Re
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TER TET
Turnover EEH
To external customers EFHIPRF 3,417 89,506 148,094 854 241,871
Segment results PREE 83,406 107,584 5221 865 197,076
Unallocated other income AOBEMBA 768
Unallocated corporate expenses KPR ARER (87,332)
Finance costs FERA (5)
Profit before taxation G Ibawl 110,507
Income tax expense FEHRAX (1,657)
Profit for the year AERGH 108,850

There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended

31 March 2010 (2009: Nil).

Segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2010

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
liabilities by reportable segment:

RBE-_E—TF=-A=1+—HILEEYED
JBREEE (ZFETNF - &) -

R-E-ZSFE=-A=+—HZ2EEERAERE

TRAREERITSHIAZEERARS
#r -

Manufacture
and sales of
Loan goods Property
financing  Investments BER  investment Consolidated
EVRE RE& HEEm NERE &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TR THET TR
Assets EE
Segment assets DEEE 62,214 411,037 39,479 20,450 533,180
Unallocated corporate assets ROBRAREE 165,910
Consolidated total assets RABEE 699,090
Liabilities =L
Segment liabilities HHEAR - - 26,734 - 26,734
Unallocated corporate liabilities AORARIEE 17,438
Consolidated total liabilities meBaR 44,172
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 &Z—

—BF=-A=+—HLFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5. 2E&ER @)
Other segment information for the year ended 31 BE—_Z2—ZTF=A=+—HULESFEzHMD
March 2010 B|ER
Manufacture
and sales of
Loan goods Property
financing  Investments SR investment Unallocated Consolidated
ERE RE& HEEm NERE RO &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THx TR THR TR
Addition of available-for-sales EERBEERE
financial assets - 25,000 - - - 25,000
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EESH - - - - 2,054 2,054
Bank interest income SRITAI B WA - - (82) - = (82)
Capital expenditures BRRX - - 720 - - 720
Depreciation of property, ¥ BERZELE
plant and equipment - - 1,570 - 6 1,576
Loss on disposal of property, MENE  BER
plant and equipment HEEBE - - 3 - - 33
Impairment loss on assets BELERERESE
held for sale - - - - 48,742 48,742
Gain on fair value changes REMENTERS 2
on investment properties Wogs - - - (1,711) - (1,711)
Net unrealised holding gain on BOVEF A BREL
financial assets at fair value B EEIARER
through profit or loss BElS R - (18,087) - - - (18,087)
Release of prepaid lease payments BAEEHERD - - - 665 - 665
Reversal of impairment loss for loan  FEYrE = R IELRIE. 2
and interest receivables HESERD (80,000) - - - = (80,000)
Segment revenues and results for the year ended 31 March BE_TTNF=A=+T"RALFEZHHER
2009 m M EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and TERANEBIRESFDBEZ WS REED
results by reportable segment: M
Manufacture
and sales of
Loan goods Property
financing  Investments BER investment  Consolidated
EXEE RE HEEM MERE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAT THL THT AL
Turnover EE
To external customers EFHNEE S 29,206 (85,482) 186,211 4,937 134,872
Segment results ok B (155,703) (224,825) 9,653 42314 (328,561)
Unallocated other income RAOBEADUA 3,282
Unallocated corporate expenses FORARER (18,510)
Finance costs BERAR 43)
Loss before taxation B RIE R (343,832)
Income tax expense ST (1,458)
Loss for the year EEER (345,290)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 2 =—Z—ZEF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 5. B &)
Segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2009 RZZEZNGF=—A=+—RHZHBEEEIBE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and TERBAEERAZEROIBZEERBED
liabilities by reportable segment: T -
Manufacture
and sales of
Loan goods Property
financing  Investments BER investment  Consolidated
EXmE RE HEEMm MERE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAT THL THT AL
Assets BE
Segment assets PEEE 105,920 186,821 47,708 18,739 359,188
Unallocated corporate assets APEARIEE 33,882
Consolidated total assets HEBEE 393,070
Liabilities =k
Segment liabilities NEBE - - 20,612 - 20,612
Unallocated corporate liabilities AORARIEE 12,737
Consolidated total liabilities mAERE 33,349
Other segment information for the year ended 31 March HETTAF=-A=+T—RzHMOEER
2009
Manufacture
and sales of
Loan goods Property
financing ~ Investments &R investment  Unallocated  Consolidated
SHEE BE HEEm MERE RAR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tir Thr THr TAL TAL Tir
Addition of available-for-sales HERBEERE
financial assets - 20,000 - - - 20,000
Bank interest income SATHIEIA - - (17) = (70) (87)
Capital expenditures EREY - - 1,150 - 40 1,190
Depreciation of property, n% - BERXELNE
plant and equipment - - 1,659 5 3 1,667
Gain on disposal of property, LENE  BER
plant and equipment 2 Mg = = = (2,870) (2,870)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBA R iz - - (1,221) (39,487) - (40,708)
Impairment allowance on EthRWGIE 2R ERE
other receivables 300 - - - 116 416
Impairment loss on loan and EREFRERFE 2
interest receivables HESE 182,500 = = = = 182,500
Gain on fair value changes on RENEATEEE
investment properties W = = = (360) - (360)
Net unrealised holding loss ROVEFABRER L
on financial assets at fair value AR RER
through profit or loss BEERYE . 139,008 - - - 139,008
Release of prepaid lease payments BAREERD B - - 665 - 665
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 &Z—

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Geographical information

The Group’s sales of goods are principally carried out in
Europe, United States of America, Hong Kong and other
regions in the PRC. Property investment is carried out in
other regions in the PRC. Investments trading and loan
financing are carried out in Hong Kong.

The following tables set out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s turnover from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, and non-current
portion of prepaid lease payments (“Specified Non-current
Assets”). The geographical location of customers is based
on the location at which the services were provided. The
geographical location of the Specified Non-current Assets
is based on the physical location of the assets.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
turnover by geographical market, irrespective of the origin
of the goods/services:

—BF=-A=+—HLFE

5. o¥EEH#)
i EE R

AREBETERBON  XB - FEERPEE MM
EEESm - #@%%%zéiﬁ“qﬂlliiﬁﬁﬁﬂEi AT o
KREEENEFTRMENEBETT -

THRENBAOAEERBINATF 2 EXTE
MNVAEEBZREDE WE - BERRE -
%E\Hfﬂi’—f IEZ;'E/}\L@J |:||3 (F?EEQFML@JQ
El) ZHBUEER - TP 2B EENIE
HRBAEMIET - MEBTIERBDEE M

BUEBERNEEERMEMEET -

TRABRWEMNS2I 2 AEEEEEIMN
(TwEm,/ R Z R -

2010 2009

—F-%F —FENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Europe (EO 65,192 104,364
United States of America FEH 30,748 31,344
Hong Kong a5 101,547 (47,774)
Other regions in the PRC A [0 L At dh [ 17,621 12,437
Others Hith 26,763 34,501
241,871 134,872
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZEZ =

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Geographical information (Cont’d)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets and Specific Non-current assets and
additions to property, plant and equipment, analysed by
the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

—FF=-A=+—HLFE

5. ZEES @)

wEER ()

REAEMENES D 2O BEERKE TR
BEZEMERDE BELRRBZAEZSD
T :

Additions to property,

Carrying amount of  plant and equipment Specified
segment assets M - BER Non-current Assets
SREEZREE BEZRE EEFRBEE
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—B2-BF _TTNF ZB-BF _TTNEF ZB-BF _TThF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FTAT TExT FHET FTEx FAT
Hong Kong B8 494,748 321,303 620 713 2,046 2,295
Other regions in the PRC A B E Ath pb [ 38,432 37,885 100 477 28,057 27,660
533,180 359,188 720 1,190 30,103 29,955
Information about major customer FHRFXEEFZEHR

Included in revenues arising from external sales of
accessories for photographic, electrical and multimedia
products of HK$148,094,000 (2009: HK$186,211,000)
are revenues of HK$15,727,000 (2009: HK$24,391,000)
which arose from sales to the Group's largest customer

0

HIINHERME ERLZERBERENG
A 7 U %5148,094,00008 T (Z EZE A F
186,211,000/ ) P BiERAAEE &Z A K
FRERHEEERSH) FHZ2HE e

15,727,000 T (ZFEZF L F © 24,391,000;%

s

(manufacture and sales of goods segment). JT) e
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HAblwxA
2010 2009
—B-%F —FENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Bank interest income HRITHLEHA 82 87
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENRB ARz W = 40,708
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BEREEZ
and equipment g - 2,870
Sundry income HMEIFUT A 768 625
850 44,290
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=HA=1+—HItFE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Interest on bank and other borrowings AR AT NBEEER
wholly repayable within five years R1ITREAMEE TR 5 43
8.  PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 8. ®BiavaEA (BE)
2010 2009
—E-BF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Profit (Loss) before taxation has been arrived BaraF (B8) Bk~
at after charging/(crediting): (Gt A) LATRIER :
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EEE 2,054 =
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEENE 1,552 1,050
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses HWRARY 2 FEKA 104,084 143,514
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %12 - WE MREITE 1,576 1,667
Equity-settled share-based payment AR E 2 IR TR 12,199 -
Impairment allowance on other receivables Hfth FRUCHIE R BB - 416
Operating leases payments in respect MR EHENT
of premises 2,084 3,478
Release of prepaid lease payments BREERIERD 665 665
Staff costs including directors’ EEXAN (BREESHE X
emoluments and contributions RRREFET B
to retirement benefits schemes 37,285 38,556
Exchange loss, net [ 5 EE - R 9 127
Loss (Gain) on disposal of property, LEYE  BEREKEZ
plant and equipment EE (Was) 33 (2,870)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME ARz Wax = (40,708)
Gross rental income from investment properties & & ¥ 2 & AW A (854) (4,937)
Less: direct operating expenses that generated ¥ : EAFHEWAZ
rental income BEEEERY 663 649
(191) (4,288)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiEZE=Z—FF=H=1+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 9. EEMERESFMES
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM£
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors ENSENSESTNMESOT
are as follows:
Rental paid/
rateable
value in
respect of
Retirement  quarters Share-based
Salaries  benefits  provided payments
and other  scheme izt (note)
Appointed Resigned benefits contribution B&EFffz  HKHA
Name of Director during the year during the year Fees HeR  BAER Be/ER Efz Total
BEps REREZE RERRHE wE  HMER B EWEE AR (D) ait
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$‘000
TER THER TER TER THER THER
2010
—2-%%
Executive Directors
YrES
Au Yeung Kai Chor - - - 900 12 480 223 1,615
BRI
Peter Temple Whitelam - - - 513 - - 12 625
Lam Suk Ping - - - 576 12 - 223 811
PR
Lo Yuen Wa Peter - - - 840 12 - 223 1,075
ENE
Song Jiajia 16 June 2009 - - - - - - -
REE “E2ENFERATRA
Woo Eddie 30 March 2010 - - - - - - -
HRR “E-ZF=B=1H
Independent Non-Executive
Directors
BUHTES
Chan Sze Hung - - 200 - - - - 200
FRt%
Hui Wai Man, Shirley - - 120 - - - - 120
ATEH
Kristi L Swartz - 29 December 2009 90 - - - - 90
ZETNF
T=ZB=tnB
Miu Frank H. 28 December 2009 - 30 - - - - 30
2% ZERNF
TZA=tAH
Que Agustin V. 27 January 2010 - - - - - - -
It 2 0
o =
440 2,829 36 480 781 4,566
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted MizE : HWARBARARZERETEIR TES 2 EIRE

to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme

(note 32).

21518 (FFE32) -

Mascotte Holdings Limited SHTESEHR /A5 ® Annual Report 2010 F R

63



64

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=HA=1+—HItFE

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 9. EEMERESFMES &)
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont'd)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont’d) (a) EEM<E (&)
Rental paid/
rateable
value in
respect of
Retirement quarters
Salaries benefits provided
and other scheme PRt
Appointed Resigned benefits contribution T&&EFTITZ
Name of Director during the year  during the year Fees Hek RIMER BeER Total
i RERNEEE RFREHE BE  HifEs  FEfR  Ee8EE CE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET TET FET FET
2009
“TTNF
Executive Directors
HTES
Au Yeung Kai Chor = = = 581 12 295 888
RS R
Chan Qi Ling, Maria Olimpia - 7 April 2008 - 57 - 22 79
RER —TTNEF
MA+H
Chung, Wilson - 24 July 2008 - 94 4 - 98
ERR —TENF
+A=-+mA
Peter Temple Whitelam - - - 526 - - 526
Lam Suk Ping 7 April 2008 - - 583 12 - 595
MR —TTN\F
mA+H
Lo Yuen Wa Peter 24 July 2008 - - 594 8 - 602
ETLE —ETNF
+A=+mA
Independent Non-Executive
Directors
BUFHTES
Chan Sze Hung - - 200 - - - 200
BRIEE
Cheung Ngai Lam - 7 April 2008 - - - - -
SRERM —TTNF
mA+HA
Hui Wai Man, Shirley - - 120 - - - 120
AR
Kristi L Swartz - - 120 - - - 120
Lui Wai Shan, Wilson - 7 April 2008 1 - - - 1
aZ —ETNF
mA+HE
441 2,435 36 317 3,229
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiEZE=Z—FF=H=1+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont'd)

(b) Highest paid employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two
(2009: none) directors of the Company, details of whose
emoluments are set out in note 9(a). The emoluments
remaining three (2009: five) highest paid individuals are as
follows:

9. EEMERESFMES &)

(b) EEFMESR

AEBAERRSFMALBEARAME (=
FENF: #)ES FRARSHEZFEC
IR FN ) BT =R (ZFENF - 7
) BEFMALZBESWT :

2010 2009
= —TTNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FA&T
Salaries and other benefits Fre L EMET 6,598 8,865
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RGBT 20 12 36
Rentals paid/rateable value in respect of MIREBEESHAN2EE
quarters provided e A= AR E 960 1,128
7,570 10,029
The emoluments were within the following bands: MeeBmEBELNT :
No. of individuals
AB
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,00187C2 1,500,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,87C 22,000,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,0018 7T £4,500,0007% 7T 1 1
3 5
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRfEHRAX
2010 2009
—E-BF —ZETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
The charge comprises: FriStiF s B1F -
Current year KEE
Hong Kong =5 1,130 809
Other regions in the PRC A B E bt [ 461 615
1,591 1,424
Under provision in prior years BAEFERENE
Other regions in the PRC R B E i b [ 66 34
1,657 1,458
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PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ=—Z—ZF=HA=1+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2009:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

Taxation arising in other regions in the PRC is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to Enterprise Income
Tax. PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at the
prevailing tax rate at 25% (2009: 25%) on taxable income
determined in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
from profit (loss) before taxation per the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

10. FIB®iFAx (&)

BAREH B P2 et R AR i X
16.5% (ZFZENF - 16.5%) 518 -

5o B St 0 2 A 2 OB AR DA 2
RATHE T -

FRENBAR BB EMSR - PEDSEFRT
BRI BEBEENNMBOIETFEE 2’
R AIZ25% (ZFEZENF - 25%) 2 IB1T
HEGTE o

AEEZAERAX A BIREESRARRZ
BADEF (B1R) HERMT -

2010 2009
—E-BF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Profit (Loss) before taxation BEDEA (E38) 110,507 (343,832)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits tax rate of BEBNEHHRE16.5%
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) (ZEZNF 165%)
HE A 18,234 (56,732)
Non-deductible expenses AR A 52 11,727 27,231
Tax exempt revenue BERBUA (13,275) (7,393)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR 44 23
Unrecognised tax losses AT R HIBER 1,604 38,207
Unrecognised temporary differences NFHERZ L =58 (200) (29)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised BB % AT AMER 2 M5 E 1B (16,735) =
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FEEMBRIEREREE 2
operating in other jurisdictions MEBARZ TRBER 2 247 44
Others Hitb 1" 107
Income tax expense for the year RERMEHRFAX 1,657 1,458

At 31 March 2010, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$364,392,000 (2009: HK$456,092,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. All losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

11. DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been proposed by the directors for the
years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009.
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PR AR BT AL

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiEZE=Z—FF=HA=+—HIFE

12. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 12. BRER (FE)
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per N ARHEARLEREARESEN (Fi8)
share attributable to owners of the parent is based on the TIRIBE A T 8IRETE -

following data:

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Earnings (Loss) 27 (&18)
Profit (Loss) for the purpose of basic and diluted ~ F{EsTE G AR LA 2 #5522 F
earnings (loss) per share (E518) Z2af (&) 108,631 (345,273)

Number of shares

RAEE
2010 2009
—E-BF —ETNF
Weighted average number of ordinary R{EsTE SRERZF
shares for the purpose of basic (E18) 2 LR 58
earnings (loss) per share 468,455,508 258,415,148
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BrEETako w2
Convertible notes ARREE 8,499,873 -
Share options BE A e 180,017 -
Weighted average number of ordinary RIEtE BIRETE R T
shares for the purpose of diluted (E518) 2 ERAINEEFHE
earnings (loss) per share 477,135,398 258,415,148
The Company had no dilutive potential ordinary shares for RAARIRBE_ZTZNF=A=T—RHILFE
the year ended 31 March 2009. Accordingly, the diluted WHEEBETESET AR - At - SREFEIRHE
loss per share was same as the basic loss per share. BREREIERR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=HA=1+—HItFE

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. REYXE

2010 2009
—E-BF —ZETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
At fair value BALE

At beginning of the year =) 18,639 133,373
Exchange adjustments bE 54, 8 B - 2,842

Disposal of assets through disposal of BRLENBRARNEEE
subsidiaries - (117,936)
Gain on fair value changes A EEB) N 1,711 360
At end of the year FR 20,350 18,639

The carrying values of the Group'’s investment properties at
31 March 2010 are analysed as follows:

AEBREMENR_ZE—ZF=A=+—H
ZEREEDTWT

2010 2009
= —TTNF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Situated in the PRC A El iR BRI 4055 B
held under medium-term leases 20,350 18,639

All of the Group’s property interests in land held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purpose are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The investment properties have been valued as at
31 March 2010 on the basis carried out at that date
by Chung, Chan & Associates, Chartered Surveyors,
independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group, who are members of Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and have appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation, which conforms to Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standards, was arrived
at using two primary methods, namely the comparison
approach and the income capitalisation approach.

Certain of the Group’s investment properties are rented
out under operating leases.

Details of the investment properties are set out on page
104.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZEZ =

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

—FF=-A=+—HLFE

14. Y% - BERRE

The Group EEE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and  Leasehold and Plant and
buildings  improve- equipment machinery Motor
HE L ments &l KE BER vehicles Total
kEgF HERE &L ] HEE AE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET THET FHET THET FET
Cost ﬁEZME
At 1 April 2008 “TENF
Eﬂ H 8,508 2,284 2,610 18,319 6,501 38,222
Exchange adjustments P 5 S 125 10 2 248 31 416
Additions NE = 120 161 362 547 1,190
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AT - (44) (20) - - (64)
Disposals = (1,601) (74) - (4) (750) (2,429
At 31 March 2009 RZZETNF
=A=+—8H 7,032 2,296 2,753 18,925 6,329 37,335
Additions NE - - 144 108 468 720
Disposals fife= - - - (1) (418) (419)
At 31 March 2010 N-E-—Z&
=H=+—~H 7,032 2,296 2,897 19,032 6,379 37,636
Accumulated Depreciation %;—Hﬁ%
At 1 April 2008 NZZEZENE
MA—H 3,662 1,872 2,012 17,865 4,934 30,345
Exchange adjustments M 5 SR 64 7 2 245 26 344
Provided for the year FEREE 338 96 161 467 605 1,667
Eliminated on disposal of HERBAR
subsidiaries =3 = (15) @) - - (22)
Eliminated on disposals ﬂ’iﬁ-ﬂﬁﬁ (160) (37) - - (750) (947)
At 31 March 2009 N-ZEZTNE
=RA=+—8 3,904 1,923 2,168 18,577 4,815 31,387
Provided for the year FEREE 339 73 150 355 659 1,576
Eliminated on disposals HE B - - - (1) (376) (377)
At 31 March 2010 R-Z-ZF
=A=+—-H 4,243 1,996 2,318 18,931 5,098 32,586
Carrying values BREE
At 31 March 2010 R-E-8&
=B=1+-H 2,789 300 579 101 1,281 5,050
At 31 March 2009 RoBENE
=A=t+—~H 3,128 373 585 348 1,514 5,948
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=H=1+—HItFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)

The Group (Cont’d)

The above item of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold land and Over the estimated useful lives
buildings of 50 years or the terms of

the leases or the term of
the relevant joint venture
by which the buildings
are held, whichever is the
shorter

Leasehold improvements  15% or the terms of the

14. Y% BERRE (@)

EE (&)

EAWE - BE R REABRER T RET

BHE

HETRET

HEXE

G A] 2 8 & Hi50F sl
EFHSMBETNER
BEH (ABREERE)

15%HIZHEEFH (AEE

leases, if shorter ERE)
Furniture, fixtures and 15% B HEREE  15%
equipment
Plant and machinery 20% S 3 20%
Motor vehicles 20% B 20%
The carrying values of the Group’s leasehold land and AEBHELWEEBEFR_ZE—FTF=-A=1+
buildings at 31 March 2010 are analysed as follows: —HAERAEESTAT -
2010 2009
—E-2F —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Situated in the PRC held under BHEHEETERREE
medium-term leases 2,789 3,128

Mascotte Holdings Limited SHTEEE AR /A5 ® Annual Report 2010 3R



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BEZE=Z—ZFF=HA=1+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE &)
(Cont'd)
The Company ¥ /N
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
B~ £E
k&
HK$'000
T
Cost BAME
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZENFHA—HB =
Additions nE 40
At 31 March 2009 and at 31 March 2010 RZZEZANF=A=+—A8K
—E-EF=H=+—H 40
Accumulated Depreciation HEITE
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZNFHA—HB =
Provided for the year FREE 3
At 31 March 2009 RZZEEZNF=A=+—H 3
Provided for the year FARE 6
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE—-ZFF=A=+—H 9
Carrying values fREE
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE-ZFF=A=+—H 31
At 31 March 2009 RZZEZNF=A=+—H 37
The Company’s furniture, fixture and equipment are RAREM - RERBRBEAEZERFEIS%
depreciated on straight-line basis at a rate of 15% per STETE -
annum.
15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. BEFAHEERIE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTTNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Leasehold interests in land in the PRC under &R HATA &7+ BiE A 1)
medium-term lease TR ERER 5,368 6,033
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEMMIEN AT
Current mED 665 665
Non-current SEmB 4,703 5,368
5,368 6,033

Mascotte Holdings Limited SHTE LB GR A5 ® Annual Report 2010 F R

71



72

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 &Z—

—BF=-A=+—HLFE

16. GOODWILL 16. BE
HK$'000
FAT
Cost 2%
At 1 April 2008, 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010 RZZEEN\FHEA—H
“EENFHA—HBR
—T-EF=A=+—H 7,042
Impairment BB
At 1 April 2008, 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010 REZEZFENFMA—H
“ETNFHA-—AK
—E-TF=H=1+—H 7,042
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 March 2009 and 2010 R-ZBTNFR_T—FTF
=HA=+—H -
For the purpose of impairment testing in previous years, BEFERAABERE  BEIEE ﬁé%?‘%
goodwill was allocated to an individual cash generating ENHEEREESIIEEBEaHPERNE
unit (CGU) which was engaged in manufacture and sales VIR SEAEN -
of goods and was expected to benefit from that business
combination.
17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 17. AMtHEMBEE
ASSETS
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF —E-2F —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT THET FAT
Unlisted investments, JELTIRE -
at cost BKAE 45,000 20,000 25,000 -
The directors are of the opinion that their fair values FR A bl A 4 1 B 18 B 5OE B T 5 W & T 35 )
cannot be measured reliably because the above B WARAESRAEAFET A S
available-for-sale investments do not have a quoted market 2ol ZEREDNRAREWMBR AR

price in an active market. Accordingly, they are measured

BREETE o

at cost less impairment at the end of each reporting

period.

No impairment loss has been provided in respect of the

above financial assets.

BB L B 75 B R (E B IR A o
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BEZE=Z—ZFF=HA=1+—HIFE

18. RMBARZIRE

2010 2009

—E-BF —ZETNEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAET

Unlisted shares, at cost FELETRD - RAAE 89,261 89,261
Less: impairment loss B BEEE - -
89,261 89,261

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2010

are as follows:

Place of
incorporation or

AlFEBAT

Issued and fully

paid ordinary
share capital/
registered and
contributed

Attributable
equity interest

R=2-BF=A=1-0 ARAZHER

registration/ capital held by
operation ERTRHZ the Group
Name EEa ) VA= TIERBRA AEBEFrE  Principal activities
=1 B, EELR ZRREMER EBEREIER IEXK
Direct subsidiary
EERE L
Mascotte Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong 10037 REER
REBEZESE B'F
Indirect subsidiaries
EER /& 2 &)
Allied Loyal International British Virgin Islands/ 50,000 100%  Forestry investments
Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares MERE
RBELZEE &%  of noparvalue
50,000 & H &
= 313
Dongguan Tak Ya Leather PRC HK$10,400,000 76.9%  Manufacture of
Goods Manufactory Fh 10,400,000/ 7T (note b) accessories for
Limited (note a) (K13b) photographic,
R B MR electrical and
BIRAR] (Hfata) multimedia products
SUERAE B NEE
BEMRY
Greatest Splendour British Virgin Islands Us$100 100%  Loan financing
Investment Limited EBRUES 100%7T EXRE
March Professional Bags Hong Kong HK$50,000 100% Inactive
Company Limited HB 50,0007 7T EmeEx
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=H=1+—HItFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2010 are as

follows: (Cont’d)

Place of
incorporation or

ajéi’%ﬁuT B (/ég)

Issued and fully

paid ordinary
share capital/
registered and
contributed

Attributable
equity interest

18. RMBRARZRE &)

R=2-BF=A=1-0 ARAZHER

registration/ capital held by
operation ERTRHZ the Group
Name FE AR LBk ZERBRAE AREBEFTE  Principal activities
=1 B R SAMREMER EERAERE IEXK
Indirect subsidiaries
(Cont’d)
@A A ()
Marvel Century Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong 17T REER
RKBEZES B8
Mascotte Industrial British Virgin Islands/ us$4 100% Investment holding
Associates Group Limited ~ Hong Kong 47T REER
KBRS BF
Mascotte Industrial Hong Kong HK$2 100%  Trading of accessories
Associates (Hong Kong) &/ 28T for photographic,
Limited electrical and
SHE (F5) R AF multimedia products
EERAE - E8kEHE
REMEG
Mascotte Zhi Hao PRC US$3,180,000 90%  Property holding
Photographic Equipment A 3,180,000% 7T and manufacture
(Hui Zhou) Co. Ltd. of accessories for
(note a) photographic,
S EERRBAEEM electrical and
(BMERAR] (Hfita) multimedia products
REMEREEERAE -
BERLZHEBEMRL
{8
Mascotte Hui Zhou Limited  British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% Investment holding
PRC 17T REZER
KBEZES
Mascotte Overseas Limited  British Virgin Islands US$1,795,000 100% Inactive
RERTHS 1,795,000% 7T S
Mascotte Photographic British Virgin Islands US$1 100% Inactive
Trading Limited EBRUES E TmEx
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 B2 =—Z—ZEF=A=1+—HIFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 18. RMIBARIZKRE (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2010 are as RZE—ZFTF=A=1+—"8 ARazWEA
follows: (Cont’d) BIEEBWR - (&)

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/

Place of registered and Attributable
incorporation or contributed equity interest
registration/ capital held by
operation CERTREZ the Group
Name FE AR S Bk ZERBRAE KREBEFE  Principal activities
=1 B EELB AREHER EEREIER IEXK
Indirect subsidiaries
(Cont’d)
@A A (8)
Newland Kingdom Limited = Hong Kong HK$9,998 100% Inactive
i ER AR A A i HK$2* S
9,998/ 7T
278 TT*
Richful Zone Investment British Virgin Islands/ US$17,478,973 100% Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 17,478,9733<7C WE R
REBEZESE BF
Tak Ya Leather Goods British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100%  Investment holding
Manufactory Limited PRC 17T BEER
RERZHES '+
Time Beyond Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% Loan financing
EEARIQA BB 1,000,000/7T EXRE
Union Glory Finance Inc. British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100%  Loan financing and
Hong Kong 1257T investments
HBELESE /B EXREE RKE
& These represent non-voting deferred shares (note c). @ W BFERZFEELR 7 (Ffatc) »
Notes Bt st
(a) These companies are equity joint ventures. (@) ZENTAEEBEEAT] e
(b) Dongguan Tak Ya Leather Goods Manufactory Limited was (b) ReeEHT AR HAR AR BASEEE—F
established by the Group with an independent party in the F=FERBKY - RIBFEPEEGEF I ZH
PRC. Under various agreements entered into with the PRC B $%E}B{\§E f——i—f— A=+
party, the Group is entitled to all of the profits derived from —HIEERREHEBMEZ2EET °
its operations up to 31 December 2011.
(© These deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, (c) EZZI;EEHKE BiFH 2 REROHERLTNZH

practically carry no rights to dividends and no rights to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting
of the respective companies. On winding up, the holders
of the deferred shares are entitled to distribution out of the
remaining assets of the respective companies only after the
distribution of substantial amounts as specified in the Articles
of Associations to holders of ordinary shares of the respective

companies.

 MERWEE B A TZEHHx%ﬁ/\Zﬁ
iiﬁ}*ui REINE ERE - RERE - B
RN 2 758 NRGIRARABEEZMRNZRE
AA AR EBEREE ADIRAMD FIAK SR
BRESHIRKEBARZRREE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=H=1+—HItFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19. BEAFVEFAEZRZHBEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
The Group The Company
iy .| b N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-F e —E2-EF —TTNF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Btk TER TET TEr THT
Investments held for trading BIEEERE
— Equity securities, — BBz EH
listed in Hong Kong BRES (@) 343,445 126,463 337,289 108,054
Investments designated as RERERRIETE R
fair value through BATERTA
profit or loss upon Bk EE
initial recognition
— Unlisted convertible — JELmAR
notes Bz (b) 14,203 26,113 14,203 26,113
357,648 152,576 351,492 134,167

(@)  The fair value of listed equity securities is based on (@) LTREEFIATFEIERZHEANR
quoted market prices in active markets at the end HENEEMIGAEmEmEE o
of the reporting period.

(b)  The fair value of unlisted convertible notes at the by LTAMBREEZAFEIIABILA
end of reporting period has been measured by an ERBEXHEMEETSEEMERA
independent qualified professional valuer, Asset A EREEMBSRXSFANEG 2] EN
Appraisal Limited, based on reliable estimates of EmstE -
prices obtained in actual market transactions.

20. INVENTORIES 20. FE

2010 2009
—E-2F —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET

Raw materials Ex 5,157 2,900

Work-in-progress TR W 1,504 1,366

Finished goods Bk 2,066 1,320

8,727 5,586

All inventories, excluding those fully provided for with nil
carrying value, are stated at cost.

ERE (BEFE28EGERRRERTER
5N) THIRRANMAET B
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BEZE=Z—ZFF=HA=1+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21, BURESRERERE
2010 2009
—EF-%F —TTNEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
= TExT F57T
Trade and bills receivables e E 5708 & e EE % 28,245 32,345
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts T RIREE (b) (7,987) (7,987)
20,258 24,358

(@)  Ageing analysis (a) FRERDH

AEEREESFEPEHEN F30RE1508 2
EEH - BEEZRAREKREE (NBERK
BE) 2RO

The Group allowed a credit period ranging from 30 days
to 150 days to its trade customers. The ageing analysis of
trade and bills receivables (net of allowances for doubtful
debts) is as follows:

2010 2009
—E-BF —ZETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Ageing analysis of trade and JEWE G HIBREWERZ
bills receivables: BRI AT -

Within 60 days 60H A 14,056 12,725
61 — 150 days 61£2150H 4,812 11,615
More than 150 days 1508 LA 1,390 18
20,258 24,358

(b) Allowances for doubtful debts (b) RERRHE
2010 2009
—E2-2F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At beginning of the year REH) 7,987 8,085
Disposal of subsidiaries HE T E A A = (10)
Uncollectible amounts written off HiEE 1S AT Uk (B 7R 18 - (88)
At end of the year REL 7,987 7,987

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that the recovery of the amount is remote,
in which the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly.

All allowances for doubtful debts as at 31 March 2010
and 2009 were made for specific unsecured trade
receivables, which recoverability is considered doubtful by
the directors. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

FEUE 5 7018 M R R 1B 2 IR (B /5 18 10 8¢ 4 R
fERR - BRIFASKEME BRI R A REZIA 2 A
BEMRIE - IERBRT  ARREBERKE
EBRWE S IEME

R-B—FFR_FFNF=A=1T—HNH
EREREEORSEEANEKE S FHIAE
o EETRBEAERAESAIKE - K&
B30 5% FAE BRI B (R o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=H=1+—HItFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Contd)

(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not
impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

21. BRESZREREVRRE &)
() HEREZEWESFAREBERRE

BEB S A HFRE SRE 2 B E 5 5E &
ERER ZREDHT

2010 2009

—g-BF  —TTAG

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

Neither past due nor impaired HMaEs I ARRE 10,216 20,897
Within 90 days 90HN 9,348 3,443
More than 90 days 90H A E 694 18
20,258 24,358

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors believe that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully receivable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BEZE=Z—ZFF=HA=1+—HIFE

22. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 22. BERERKEWRFE
The Group The Company
FEE Y N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-%F —TTNE —E2-%E “ZTNE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bzt TET TET TER 5T
Fixed-rate loan receivables FEUE BER 11,929 162,000 - 160,000
Variable-rate loan receivables RSN 72,500 125,500 = -
84,429 287,500 - 160,000
Interest receivables ELUTH £, 285 920 - -
84,714 288,420 - 160,000
Less: Impairment allowance W ORERE (a) (22,500) (182,500) - (160,000)
62,214 105,920 - -
Less: Balance due within B —F NI A
one year included in mBBEL
current assets X (50,285) (105,920 = =
Balance due after one year —FRI 5B
included in non-current assets ERBEEIHE 11,929 - - -
Effective interest rate: EEA=
Fixed-rate loan receivables Bl ESER 20% 12% to 18% N/A 12%
per annum per annum TEH per annum
EFE20% FFIE12% EFIE12%
£18%
Variable-rate loan receivables [EYZ B ET Hong Kong Hong Kong N/A N/A
HSBC HSBC TEH TNEHA
Prime rate Prime rate

plus 2% minus 1% to
ERESRT Hong Kong
BEEAE HSBC Prime
m2% rate plus 6%
BBELRIT

REBEFER

1%2FBES
RITREEME

116%

Mascotte Holdings Limited SHTE LB GR A5 ® Annual Report 2010 F R 79



80

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 &Z—

22. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

(a) Impairment allowance

The Group determines the allowance for impaired debts
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement,
including assessment of change of credit quality, collaterals
and the past collection history of each borrower.

—BF=-A=+—HLFE

22. BRRERKEWRFE &)
(a) HERE
ﬁﬁlﬂi})ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ IR A U (B 1 2 B4 K R iR

DMARERBZHEH (BRYBZEBRAZE
EE R KM B E YRR )
BEERERSBE -

Movement in allowance for impaired debts is as follows: BEGEERE 2 EEBHINT
The Group The Company
iy .| AN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-%F “TTNF —E-BF —ETNF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Btk TER TET TER FET
Balance at beginning of FHEER
the year 182,500 - 160,000 -
Increase during the year FEREN
Key Rise International Key Rise International
Limited ("Key Rise”) Limited
([Key Rise ) - 160,000 - 160,000
Tack Fat Group International BEREERE
Limited BRAR - 22,500 - -
Decrease during the year in FATKey RisefEH!
respect of allowance made ZBERD
on Key Rise
— Recovered following — RS
the arrangement of ZHHE I
debt assignment (i) (80,000) - (80,000) -
- Written off following — RS
the arrangement of LA
debt assignment (i) (80,000) - (80,000) -
Balance at end of the year FRER 22,500 182,500 = 160,000

0] Arrangement of debt assignment

On 3 August 2009, the Company and Wellsmart Limited
(“Wellsmart”) entered into a deed of assignment (the
“Deed”) and pursuant to which the Company agreed to
sell and Wellsmart agreed to purchase the right to recover
the total outstanding principal sum due from Key Rise and
the interest accrued thereof as of the date of the Deed
(i.e. approximately HK$207,000,000), with a consideration
of HK$80,000,000. The consideration has been paid by
Wellsmart in 5 equal installments during the year.

() (EFEREZ

RZZEZENF/NNA=H ' KA A EHWellsmart
Limited ([Wellsmart]) 7] i7 & 3 2 & ([
B Bitt 0 ARFRIRE L EmMWellsmart[@ &
AU EIKey Rise#5E R ZKREERSHEBER
ZiE A B RET 2 A8 (B147207,000,0007% 7T)
2 #EF| - {8 580,000,000% 7T - K{EE M
Wellsmart AR D A HRFER T ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BEZE=Z—ZFF=HA=1+—HIFE

22. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

(a) Impairment allowance (Cont’d)
(i) Arrangement of debt assignment (Cont’d)

The management considers that the impairment allowance
made on the amount due from Key Rise should be
reversed up to the extent of the amount recovered from
Wellsmart, i.e. HK$80,000,000, through the arrangement
of debt assignment. The remaining unsettled amount of
HK$80,000,000 due from Key Rise should be considered as
uncollectible and written off together with the impairment
allowance of the same amount accordingly.

An ordinary resolution to approve the Deed was duly
passed by the shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting held on 5 October 2009.

(b) Loan and interest receivables that are not
impaired

The ageing analysis of loan and interest receivables that
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

22. BWERKREWRE &)

(a) WERE (&)
() (EFBEEZH (B)

EEEBRE  HKey RiseEXR 2 & EMIEL 2R
B 2 B O FEE AWellsmart:® B &S EE
LZHE W E 2z &% AR (880,000,000 7T) ©
Key Rise#s /R 2 8 T K& 1% ¥880,000,000/%#
TR A TAWE - HAitt - It EAERER
N BB E R TN FE T AR -

HERBEZERBABZRER _TTAF+AR
BE1TZBRFRIASEARR R REN BB

(b) RBEZEBRERKERFE

1940 5 37 o 54 900 LML 2 B M
B2 BRE AT :

2010 2009

—g-%5  —TTNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHTT

Neither past due nor impaired HMaEs I ARRE 62,214 105,920

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of borrowers for whom there was no
recent history of default. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. Except for the loan and
interest receivables due after 1 year which is classified as
non-current assets, the remaining balances of loan and
interest receivables are repayable within 6 months.

158 48 780 B I KORG8 2 B MK R 0 B A B I S 4 R
R ZRERABR -  NEBYENZFE
BEEETMNERR ROBRIFRDEELR
—FRBEZ RWE RN YR S5 BIKRE
RS 2 R T EERAR N E A RERE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=H=1+—HItFE

23. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS

Other receivables and prepayments are expected to be
recovered within one year.

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances earn interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are
made with maturity of three months or less depending
on the immediate cash requirement of the Group and
the Company, and earn interest at prevailing short-term
deposit rates.

25. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

23. HABWRIBERFANKE

H At FRUGR IR R IBN SRIBTE A R —F R E -

24. RITHEBRES

RIT/HRIDRRITEBAERAR 2 F ARG
B RHERERZIHMRER=ZMBEAIINNA
(BFEAEERARRFRREFRME) - &
BRBTRAERMEETE -

25. DEABFEHEEE

SALE
2010
—E-2F
Note HK$'000
PiEE THET
Assets classified as held for sale SERHELEERE

Intangible assets B EE (b) 127,984
Less: Impairment allowance B BB (48,742)
79,242

Liabilities directly associated with HAOMARIELEEEEREHZAE
assets classified as held for sale 42

(a)

Mascotte Holdings Limited SHTEEE AR /A5 ® Annual Report 2010 3R

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the
Group disposed entire equity interest of Richful
Zone International Limited (“Disposal Group”), a
subsidiary of the Company, to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Forefront Group Limited (“Forefront”),
a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong, at a consideration of
HK$79.2 million which is satisfied by the issuance
of 330 million new shares of Forefront at HK$0.24
each. As the selling price is lower than the carrying
amount of net assets of the Disposal Group, an
impairment loss has been recognised in these
consolidated financial statements accordingly.

(a) HEZHRBHELERE  AEERELIEE
BRAR (TEA) (EROIRERFT E
M Z2—REEWNBRARILERRRNB
NAIEFEBEBEERA R ([HEEE]) 2
2 EBRHE - R (B A79,200,000%8 7T+ KA
££77330,000,000f8 F X EH0.24E T 2
BHEFBROD ARSI - AREBER
LTEEBREEFECREE  REMRE
RAEr & MR NERIBEEE -



25.

26.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BEZE=Z—ZFF=HA=1+—HIFE

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE (Cont'd)

25. PEABELEEE &)

The intangible assets represented the rights to (i) b) BEEBEREBTINZEZEN : (HH
obtain the 50% of forestry land use rights and SHEEEEETEMEFR=AFHMNZ
forestry trees entitlement of three forestry sites in 50% M (5 FA#E R MK B 1 (i) E B
Simao District, Puer City Yunnan Province, the PRC ZERMZ50% Al g Bl o
and (ii) share 50% of distributable profits of these
forests.
The terms of forestry land use rights and forestry %= P ARIRZ MR 30 R R S MR OK PR A
tree entitlement of these three forestry tree sites are MERHR T+ F—A_tHHEHERE
50 years from 24 January 2007 to 23 January 2057. —ER+HF—A-+=HItAH50%F -
Reconciliation of carrying amount — year ended 31 REEHER -BE2_ZT—FTF=-H=+
March 2010 —HIEFE
Note HK$'000
LiEz3 FAETT
At beginning of year REA]) -
Addition through acquisition of BRBEBHB AR ZAE
subsidiaries 28 130,038
Less: Amortisation e 3 (2,054)
At end of the year, classified as REL  DPEARABELE
held for sale 127,984
TRADE PAYABLES 26. BNEZNE
2010 2009
—EB-BF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Ageing analysis of trade payables: BB S FOE 2 BRI DT ¢
Within 60 days or on demand 60 R A EERERE 9,214 7,478
61 — 150 days 61£150H 20 =
More than 150 days 1508 LA = 93 70
9,327 7,548
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=HA=1+—HItFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL

Movements during the year in the share capital of the

Company were as follows:

27. BA
RAEE  KARRANEBMNT

Number of shares Nominal value

RO EE HE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF “TTNEF —E-ZF ZTTNEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bisx TER THET
Ordinary shares of SRMEE0.10/ T
HK$0.10 each: ZERAR
Authorised: EERA
At 1 April and 31 March REA—BX
=A=+—=H 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREZER :
At beginning of the year REF] 285,924,015 1,906,160,100 28,592 190,616
Issue of shares on rights issues, A {LAZ M ZE1T
net of expenses BRfn (30Bx
FS) - 953,080,050 - 95,308
Capital reorganisation, BREH
net of expenses (MBRAXR) - (2,573,316,135) = (257,332)
Issue of shares upon PR
conversion of convertible B BT
notes, net of expenses BRfn (30BR
) (a) 260,000,000 - 26,000 -
Issue of shares upon AT TR
exercise of share options BT (b) 44,592,401 - 4,460 -
At end of the year RELR 590,516,416 285,924,015 59,052 28,592
Notes: B 5T -

(a)

During the year, the Group has acquired the entire equity
interest of Richful Zone International Limited (“Richful Zone")
at a consideration of HK$130 million satisfied by the issuance
of 3 year 4% convertible notes of the Company. Richful
Zone through its wholly-owned subsidiary owns 50% of
the concession rights and interests in respect of a forestry
land in the PRC. The convertible notes have been converted
during the year at a conversion price of HK$0.5 each and
260,000,000 ordinary shares have been issued accordingly.

On 3 March 2010, 54,592,401 share options were granted
to the employees and consultants under the share option
scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.99 per ordinary share
of HK$0.1 each. An aggregate of 44,592,401 share options
granted were exercised during the year.

All ordinary shares rank equally with one vote attached to
each fully paid ordinary share.
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(a) ER AREFBWELHBEEAERAR ([25])
& A HE - (B A130,000,00058 7T @ PAZEIT AR
NAZ ZF A% AR EE A AN - LiEE
BEZENE A RHEE B — EMH50% 2 FF
R kg o IR EBRERFRNIRERES
[%0.57% JT 5 # - §8 FE #5717 & $£260,000,0000%
TRAY -

(b) A-T—TFE=F=H  RIFERETS - UE
MR EEO0. 178 T 2 MR IR T {20.9978 T [Al /&
8 & R % 154,592,401 10 BB - £ R - &
5144,592,40110 B R 2 BB TE -

FTELERYZERSHA  SRECEEBR
HE —RIERE -



For the year ended

28. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Group acquired the entire equity
interests in the following companies.

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 March 2010 2 —FE—ZTF=A=+—HILFE

28. WRKELQE
7 - AEEBAAT AR Z 2 5

Name of Place of Principal
Acquisition date acquired companies incorporation activities Consideration
BABH L INCIEY 1 it 26 FEXK RE
HK$'000
FHETT
30 June 2009 Richful Zone British Virgin Islands Investment 130,000
—ZEThF (with its subsidiary, Allied ~ EBERLZES holding
~NA=1+H Loyal International REFERR
Investments Limited)
- ac

(X EFff &~ FlAllied Loyal
International Investments
Limited)

The aggregate fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries as at the date
of acquisition and their carrying value determined in
accordance with HKFRS immediately before combination
are as follows:

REBHERRNBABMZAIBAIEERE
LZ NFERERREZRSHAIRETEMG
WEERGHE ZREERSINT

Carrying value Fair value
BREE ATE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Intangible assets B EE 130,505 130,038
Other payables H A T R0IR (38) (38)
130,467
Total consideration satisfied by issuance of BT BMREES N2
convertible notes (Note 27) RERRE (H1:727) 130,000

As detailed in note 27, the Group acquired the
entire interest in Richful Zone at a consideration of
HK$130,000,000 which was satisfied by the issuance of
convertible notes by the Company in the principal amount
of HK$130,000,000.

S an B sE27 P it - AR5 B LA {E130,000,000
BB ALEEIKE FERERAQRE
17784 130,000,000/8 7T 2 I AR =5 S5 1+ ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ—Z—ZF=HA=1+—HItFE

28. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The convertible notes were issued on 6 July 2009 and the
fair value of the convertible notes issued is determined
with reference to a valuation report prepared by Asset
Appraisal Limited, a firm of independent qualified valuers
not connected to the Group. The fair value of the liability
portion of the convertible notes was calculated based
on the present value of the contractually determined
stream of future cash flows discounted at the interest and
providing substantially the same cash flows, on the same
terms, but without conversion option. The term structure
of the interest rate is equal to benchmark interest rate plus
spread rate. The benchmark interest rate is the HKD Fund
Note and the spread rate is determined with reference to
credit analysis of the Company and the market rate with
similar credit ratio. The implied discount rate of the liability
portion is 18.0%. The equity portion of the convertible
notes represents the residual value of the principal after
deduction of fair value of the liability portion.

The subsidiaries acquired contributed HK$Nil to the
Group’s revenue and decreased the Group's profit before
tax by HK$2,058,000 for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Had the business combination been effected on 1 April
2009, the revenue of the Group would have been no
change and the profit for the year of the Group would
have been decreased by HK$3,452,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of the
Group that actually would have been resulted had the
business combination been completed on 1 April 2009,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

29. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

As detailed in note 28 to the financial statements, the
Group acquired the entire interests of Richful Zone at a
consideration of HK$130,000,000 which was satisfied by
the issuance of convertible notes by the Company in the
principal amount of HK$130,000,000.
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28. WIBMIE AT (&)

AHRBREER-_ZZNFLANEHT BE%
TZARRER 2 A FEDESERAEEL
BREZBYAERMGEMEENEGTRAT
REZEERERETE - IRREBRABEIND
ZRFEIDNEHEEERRR S RELILE
RUIGRIERHAR LHEFERSREB Y BB RE
ZTEEMSMNEYER CRERERTEMN
B DN REBEIRANELERNRMEE - &
ENEXRAETESRE MEZNEL2EAR
A2 EEAMERBEUEEL R mGHNRRE
- RBEFD RSN EK18.0% AT
SEEDaBO NEAEENRAERD 2 RF
B2 RIHEE -

BE-_Z-TF=A=1+—RBILEE  FFkE
MEBARBAEEZWATBBIZT AT WHEAR
& B AR FR 42,058,000 7T ©

WEKEHER ST NFLA—HEIT ' &
SEZWABTSEE  MASBEARFE &
1 8 13,452,0008 7 c EEERHEHK A 2
B WA EEREZEFEHERZTZTNF
MA—HEXMERGE WA REEEZ -
MMIERREE 2 TEA -

29. FEFRERNH

BANEA TS TR R M FE28FT I - ANEE T Uk B L1
22 EfkERS - R{B/A130,000,000/8 7T @ 5B
A TEE{TASE130,000,00058 7T 2 AJ AR E
B e
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30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessee:

At 31 March 2010, the Group and the Company had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:

30. KEHERH
EREBA

RZZB-—ZFF=ZA=1+—B AEEEARQF
RIEPAERMEZ AAIREEEHERAT
FEXMZ ARKEHESARENT ¢

The Group The Company
rEEH ¥/

2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-2F —ETNF —E-2F —ETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET FTERT FHET

Within one year —F R 1,867 3,157 140 595
In the second to fifth year S _ZFH4F

inclusive (BREEEMF) 1,489 2,664 - -

3,356 5,821 140 595

Leases are negotiated for term of one to five year with
fixed monthly rentals over the lease term.

As lessor:

The Group leases out its investment properties under
operating leases with lease term of one to fifteen years.
The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

KAz cHEFHAE—FE20F  RHEEFH
NEAMNEERES -

EAHMBEA :
AEBREBESLEHAEHBAE R EME BB A

—E+HF - RETATRHELEHEZRRE
WRIEHSAEN T

The Group
rEE

2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FAT
Within one year —F RN 1,085 2,040
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFLF (RREEEMTE) 542 2,320
1,627 4,360
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ—Z—ZF=HA=1+—HItFE

31. MARGIN FACILITIES

Margin facilities of HK$168,870,000 (2009:
HK$58,875,000) from a regulated securities broker were
granted to the Group under which financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of HK$354,442,000
(2009: HK$152,576,000) were treated as collateral for
the facilities granted. As the Group has not utilised any
of these facilities as at 31 March 2010 (2009: HKS$NIl),
effectively none of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (2009: Nil) was charged to the securities
broker.

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted on 21 August 2003, for the primary
purpose of providing incentive to directors and eligible
employees and suppliers of goods or services of the
Group and which will expire 10 years after the date of
adoption, the board of directors of the Company may,
at its discretion, grant options to consultants and eligible
employees, including executive directors, of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a trading day or (i) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options or (iii) the nominal value of the shares,
whichever is the higher.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted (together with options exercised
and options then outstanding) under the Scheme shall not,
when aggregated with any shares subject to any other
schemes, exceed 30% of the total number of the issued
share of the Company from time to time. The shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
shares in issue on the day of approval by shareholders of
the Company.
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31. FREE

AEEE—RAXREBHFERLTRTIFREE
168,870,000/%8 T (= & & /1 4 : 58,875,000
Bor) Bl BAFEFABRRCMBEE
354,442,000/ 7T (= EZEJL4F : 152,576,000
B) MERFREEZERR - RZ2E—F
FZA=1T—H AEEHAPAEAZESE
BE(ZEZ/NF: - #Z) UERLEYEZAF
Bt \ BB EEER TZESFLLTT
(ZEFNF &) -

32. B R

ARAR-ZZEE=FNA=-+—BRH—EE
MiEETE ([Zat8l))  EEXEZEMAERES -
AEREERAEBZE R RGHEERRE
25E - Mkt SR ERABEEI0F R 1R
BT ARAEEe BBRARQRHHE
TAMBRAF 2EMEEERES (BENTT
EE)RTEBREUREART 2K H - B
ABORTBREAS (BARSAH) BROEBR
FrzimEsk(iNVZEEREBREBHIAER
5 B I FE B 32 B 2 - U T (& k(i) AR D (&
ZEIZREE -

BEZTE A RLERE (ERERETHER
WARITHE ZBRE) TP R 2BRHEE LR -
M EEAEMETERE 2D 0 G5t TN EHBB
KRB TEEEITZRMHEEHI0% - BIEZGT
B R ARNREREMBERET G TREZET
EEREETERAIETZRGD  TEBBA
NEIREAAEE BB BTN Z10% °
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Contd)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
cannot exceed 1% of the total number of the issued share

of the

Company. Upon acceptance of option, the grantee

shall pay HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration of
the grant. An option may be exercised at any time during
the validity period of the options.

32. BRI (&)

REA+ZEARE RTE2EEZBRE
(BHREITERERITES) Y kBN E
FRAGEBARTEETRMNAERZ1% - 1
EMBAER AR AARARBRERARD
A 1ETTERNRE - BAERINEARES X
HAABERF1TIE

(@) Movements in share option scheme: (a) BEREEEF
As at
1 April 2008,
31 March
2009 and
1 April 2009
R-ZENF
mA-B» As at Share price  Share price
Name of “BENE Granted Exercised 31 March atthedate  at the date
category of ZA=1-H during during 2010 Exercise of grant  of exercise
participant Date of grant R=BEhF the year theyear H-Z-Zf Pice ~ REHAH  RIEAH
SREGRER it A8 MA—A EREL ERfTE =A=1-A oy ZBE ZRE
(note i) (note ii) (note iii)
(Fitzi) (R (Fizii)
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT
Executive directors
01ES
Mr. Peter Temple 3 March 2010 - 500,000 - 500,000 0.99 0.9 -
Whitelam %%
Peter Temple Whitelam = A=H
b
Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter 3 March 2010 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.99 0.99 -
ENELE —5-%F%
=R=H
Mr. Au Yeung Kai Chor 3 March 2010 = 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 0.9 0.9 =
BRI E %%
=A=H
Mr. Lam Suk Ping 3 March 2010 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.99 0.9 -
HRTEE “T-%F
=R=H
Staff and consultants 3 March 2010 = 51,092,401  (44,592,401) 6,500,000 0.9 0.9 0.9
{8 LR —T-%F
=A=H
Notes:

@

(ii)

(iii)

The share options are fully vested upon the date of grant
and may be exercised in whole or in part by the respective
grantees at any time not later than 2 March 2020.

The share price at the date of grant is the Stock Exchange
closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the date
of the grant of the options.

The share price at the date of exercise is the Stock Exchange
closing price on the trading date at the date of exercise of
the options.

it

() BREARE ARG ERE  TAREFRA
KER—F—FF= 02 EAHEAZE
S TTHE -

() B B Y AR RS AT B R PR MR
#9912 2 5 B FriR 2 i E -

(i)  RITEBHZERERBRIPARITERERERR
X5 B WE o
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)

(b) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of share option granted under the share
option scheme at the grant date was HK$0.223 per share
option, which is calculated using the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model with the following inputs:

Grant date share price: HK$0.99
Exercise price: HK$0.99
Dividend yield: 0%

Expected volatility: 80.99%
Expected life: 0.5 year
Risk-free rate 0.17%

The expected volatility is based on historic volatility based
on publicly available information. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value of
the share options granted.

33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme (“Defined
Contribution Scheme”) for its qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme were held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
an independent trustee. Where there are employees who
leave the Defined Contribution Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the amount of the forfeited
contributions would be used to reduce future contributions
payable by the Group.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined a
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ monthly remunerations
or HK$1,000 per month whichever is the smaller to
the MPF Scheme. The only obligation of the Group
with respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years.

Mascotte Holdings Limited SHTE LB HR /A5 ® Annual Report 2010 3R

—BF=-A=1+—HLFE

32. RO &)
(b) BEREAFERER

RIFBRESINIR L AR L 2 BRERF
BERENHEKREC.2238 T HEBHEIR —
SERMEEERAGESH  ZBEEZHA
gEmT

i BEIAR(E - 0.99% 7T
1IEfE - 0.99/%8 7T
MBS 0%
TEHRR IR 80.99%
TERTFHA - 0.5%
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME (Contd)

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the Defined Contribution Scheme and the MPF Scheme
charged to profit or loss represent contributions paid or
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the schemes.

Employees located in PRC are covered by the retirement
and pension schemes defined by local practice and
regulations and which are essentially defined contribution
schemes.

During the year, the Group made retirement benefits
scheme contributions of HK$1,337,000 (2009:
HK$1,715,000).

As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, there were no forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
scheme and which are available to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group in the future years.

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, during the year,
the Group had the following transactions with related
parties:

(i) Transactions with a non-controlling shareholder:

33. RABERFE &)

E R GET 8] MR tE & 51 8 2 AR IR R 5T 8l 6
RERBREF R - AAKEIR SR AR
EELL KRB BN 2K -

AEEzHERE T2 EREMERRE 2R
KEEZEE > ZFTEIANE LB ERMH
KT S o

KEER AEBZ2RIKEBHTEHKE
1,337,000% 7T (= & &£ /1 % : 1,715,000;%
JT) °

R-B—BER-FTAF=A=+—R0 &
S5 .37 47 () 0 B JR 1 T 80 70 28 A 30 ) PR L
AR ER R 32 BRI -

3. BEAIXRS

BRAVBHREREMBOFMEELIRS ER
Oh  REERAFEGHETZ2HEEATZ SN
T

(i) EEFZERRRZRS :

Name of party Nature of transactions 2010 2009
AREE A —2-2F “ETThE
HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT THETT

Dongguan City Qiao Guang
Industrial Group Company
REMBAEXREE QA

HeH

Rental expense

1,106 927
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ =T —ZF=HA=1+—HItFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 3. AEALRF (£)

(i)  Transactions with other related companies: (i) HEHEMBEEARZRS :
Name of party Relationship Nature of transactions 2010 2009
NE BB 221 £ TEME —E-2F ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Mascotte Investments A company controlled Rental expense
Limited by a key ez H
HBHEREBR AT management
personnel
H—REEEEAS
2 /N 862 930
(iii) Compensation of key management personnel (iii) ETEEE ABFHMH
The remuneration of directors and other members of key RFEEZESKEMTEEEABTMOT :

management during the year was as follows:

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
Short-term benefits 2 EAtE A 11,736 12,363
Post-employment benefits BER R A 115 403
Share-based payments KN 782 —
12,633 12,766
The remuneration of directors and key executives is EENRFTEMTBABZTFMOITHEZESLR
determined by the remuneration committee having regard BEAKRBRTIGHBHERET o
to the performance of individuals and market trends.
35. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO 35. W PEASHIE D R
SUBSIDIARIES
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, JEU  FEAST BT B A Bl kI8 Ty KR - B N
interest free and have no fixed repayment term. EEFEERHAR o
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bills receivables, loan and interest receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, bank balances and cash
and other financial liabilities. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
investments held for trading classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss in the statements
of financial position. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted market
prices of the trading securities had been 17% (2009:
37%) higher or lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group's net profit would be increased or
decreased by HK$58 million (2009: net loss would be
decreased or increased by HK$45 million) as a result of
changes in fair value of investments.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the reasonably possible changes in the stock market index
or other relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure
to equity price risk in existence at that date. It is also
assumed that the fair values of the Group's investments
would change in accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant stock market index or the relevant risk
variables, that none of the Group’s investments would
be considered impaired as a result of a reasonably
possible decrease in the relevant stock market index or
other relevant risk variables, and that all other variables
remain constant. The stated changes represent directors’
assessment of reasonably possible changes in the relevant
stock market index or the relevant risk variables over the
period until the next end of annual reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

36. £@TH

B E R SR B AR
AEBFTECHTARIEREKE S ZERE
WEE  ERERREKFE - AHEEG

BE BRAVEFABREZUEEE - £17
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HEEREEMNERHE - TXENEZE e
mﬂIﬂﬁF%Zﬂ &Zlﬂﬂlzﬂfﬁ;xiﬂ_k 2 2 I
K-BEEE EE&WTIEZE? C DATER K B
B EHEEE B o

KRAEEEERE

AEEEBRNMBIRRKRAD BRRAFER
ANBalk M BEECRFEEREEEZK
AERRER - SURE DT TIER AR 2 B
BREREE

LHIHKR  WEEBHFZ2MSME LK
TE17% (ZZFZE/F :37%) MEMTEE
%z g AIAEE &N FESAKE 2

N B & B) i 18 h0 =k R 4>58,000,000% 7T (=
FEENF - E1EFEE R ot 42 1145,000,000
JBor) e

BRE DT 2 EETIBRER MBSk K H

R EE s SB S NRE I RE &%
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mm%ﬂ BN EE T —FEmEHEKRA
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[ — HETT o
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk
Most of the Group’s business transactions were conducted
in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, Euros and United States

dollars.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the

36. ©RITH (&)
B E kR EE B REEE (8)

P
REBRIDEBZZHUETT
TC M ETCHETT ©

TRFJANEEARBEE

B

DEEEBEAINNE

end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from MABAM s EHREEXBERREHARA
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency b B E g
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate:
2010 2009
—B-BF —TTNE
United States United States
Dollars Euros  Renminbi Dollars Euros Renminbi
EYH B AR¥ £ BT ARE
("000) ("000) ("000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(Fx) (F7x) (Fx) (Fr) (F7) (Fr)
Trade and other receivables B E 578 I
ot AR 3,263 86 - 3,804 162 34
Cash and cash equivalents B & RERREEE 687 1,020 - 1,231 66 =
Trade and other payables ENESFIER
H e 508 (40) = = (47) - (132)
Overall net exposure R S RE 3,910 1,106 - 4,988 228 (98)
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change
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36. ©RITH (&)
B E kR EE B REEE (8)

BE DT

R BT 7 £ L 3R 25 R R S S T

in the Group’s net profit (2009: net loss) in response to ZEBA R MARNEXER ?ﬁ)ﬁ?ﬁ'ﬁ%
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates B(ZFZTNF - B1RFH) ZTEJEZ’]“
to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period.
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/ (decrease) in (Decrease)/
foreign (decrease) in foreign increase in
exchange rates net profit exchange rates net loss
SIS BE = AR BN b R BiEF5E
ERH (PR &M CEL) EA (TR CRid),#Em
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
United States Dollars ETT 302 1% (386)
(1%) (302) (1%) 386
Euros H 231 17% (396)
(2%) (231) (17%) 396
Renminbi AR - - 2% 2
_ - (2%) (2)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for
financial instruments in existence at the date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.
No impact on the other equity reserves is expected. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the next end of annual reporting
period. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of United States dollar against other currencies.

FEEHRRED>NE  DERIJINEEXREHE
RBEHHRELE  VEEARNSEBREES
EZAAXEGESRTIAECERRAR - H—
DHMEE (CHEEMNXK) #5148 - HEHH
ﬁﬂﬂﬂééfa%ﬁjr, B2 c GOSN _ZEZNEF
#ZE— HELT o

PSS EE BB IMNEEREEE T —FE
HEBEIR A B 2 & IR Al RE & B P {E A AT
e sttt E @ DIRRBTER T2 MRER
TEREXTHAEMEE 2BEZEMNESHMR

NEATE -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest risk in relation
to certain variable-rate loans and advances. The Group
currently does not have a cash flow interest rate hedging
policy. However, the Group is closely monitoring its
exposure arising from margin financing and other lending
activities undertaken by allowing an appropriate margin on
the interest received and paid by the Group.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime
Rate arising from the Group’s certain variable interest rate
loan receivables. However, cash flow interest rate risk
is considered minimal as the variable interest rate loan
receivables have short maturity date.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at
the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the
risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in
full when due. Impairment allowances are made for losses
that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period.
Significant changes in the economy, or in the health of a
particular industry segment, could result in losses that are
different from those provided for at the end of reporting
period. Management therefore carefully manages its
exposure to credit risk.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables and loan and interest receivables.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont’d)
Credit risk attributable to trade receivables

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk
on trade receivable as a substantial portion of its trade
receivables is generated from a limited number of
counterparties and customers respectively. As at 31 March
2010, the top five customers, in term of trade receivables,
of the Group accounted for about 70% (2009. 66%) of
the Group’s trade receivables. The Group manages its
credit risk on trade receivables by closely monitoring the
granting of credit period.

Credit risk attributable to loan and interest receivables

The Group is also exposed to concentration of credit risk
on certain loan and interest receivables. At 31 March 2010,
100% (2009: 77%) of loan and interest receivables, before
impairment allowances, is generated from the Group's top
four borrowers of the loan financing segment.

The Group manages its credit risk on loan and interest
receivables through regular analysis of the ability of
borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and
principal repayment obligations and by changing their
lending limits where appropriate. Exposure to credit
risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral and
corporate and personal guarantees. The Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual debt at end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Credit risk attributable to bank balances

Although the bank balances held by the Group are
concentrated on certain counterparties, the credit risk
on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
creditworthy licensed banks.

Other than the above, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.

36. ©RITH (&)
MR EE B REBER (&)

FEmRE (&)
BRE S RELEERR

HRAEE 2 KE D BWE ZKEDRIKEHR
REMEZRZEUFREP  MAKEmEREW
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the end of reporting period to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

The Group
TEE
On demand or within 1 year

BERFAR-FAHEE

36. TRITH (&)
B EREE B RERE (F)

AEEEBERTERELFRNEER - N
ZHIREE SRR

TRAXREERARRBR M BABIN - ZF
MBARREERENRGEMMR 2K THRES
WBHEE D /BEREE I BER o TR ATH
BeRARBRAZAHNRERE

The Company
ARQF]
On demand or within 1 year

BERJAR—FAHEE

2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —EENF —E-F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FTHET FAT
Trade payables FERHE S F08 9,327 7,548 - -
Other payables and H A FE S FRIE K

accrued charges fEETE R 22,161 14,962 5,088 2,074
Income tax payable FERTE1S AR 12,642 10,839 - -
Amount due to subsidiaries FE{THB A B FIE = - 89,191 89,601
44,130 33,349 94,279 91,675

Fair value of financial instruments SRMIAEATE

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded in active
markets are determined with reference to quoted market
bid and ask prices. The fair values of other financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Fair value of financial instruments (Cont’d)
Fair value disclosures

The following presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at 31 March 2010
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair
value of each financial instrument categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

° Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments;

o Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data;

o Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input
is not based on observable market data.

36. TRITH (&)
ERMITAXNTE(F)

A FERE

ATREAFEFESRIAZREER -F
—EF =A==+ -BUBEMBREERNFET
2@ LA REMKRE <R FE=[ERH
2% M8 IAZ A FERERKELRMR
BMAZBEBEHERNTFEAEREATEEER
DR o PFTSE 2 ARBIEAT
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REBRTSHEZEE CREHE) HE
AV

s E-4H: UBEUSRIARERETS
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

36. TRITH (&)

Fair value of financial instruments (Cont'd) SRMITEQAFRE (&)
Fair value disclosures (Cont'd) RFEHE (&)
The Group
REE
2010 Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—E-ZF B RE E— 5l EZAl E= A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER TR TR
Financial assets at fair BRAFEFTA
value through BRiRZ
profit or loss: MBEE :
Equity securities, listed in ~ &B 2z FmfEx
Hong Kong B 343,445 - - 343,445
Unlisted convertible notes  JE LT A[#RREE () - 14,203 - 14,203
The Company
RAHE
2010 Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—E-2F s F—5 -t V5 E=&A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER TR TR
Financial assets at fair BAFEFTA
value through BEEZ
profit or loss: BIEEE :
Equity securities, listed in  && 2 FmtEz
Hong Kong Eors 337,289 - - 337,289
Unlisted convertible notes  JE_ LT A[#RREE () - 14,203 - 14,203

During the year ended 31 March 2010, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3

fair value measurements.

(a) The fair value of unlisted convertible notes at the
end of reporting period has been measured by an
independent qualified professional valuer, Asset
Appraisal Limited, based on reliable estimates of

prices obtained in actual market transactions.

RBEE-_FT-FTF=-_A=+t—HILFEAR " 5
— BRI NE LB zBAZ AT EFELESE
B F=RRIz AV EFEMERENED

(@) FLEMABRREBRBEHHRZAF
ENHBIAEREXMGLEMEENE
BRARARNERERTISXZ MG

ZAISETEME
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37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide returns for shareholders. The Group
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments,
including payment of dividend to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debts. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes during the years ended 31 March
2010 and 2009.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total of trade and other payables and tax payable, net of
cash and bank balances divided by the equity attributable
to owners of the parent. The gearing ratio at the end of

37. EXRER

AEEMNEAEEBEZRRENEBEEE S
B WARRREHEBRER AEEEEEALE
WEH AR - BREAMBREKRMTRE - KRS
BEASBTHIRNDIEEEENRKEIE -
REBEZE-_Z—EFR-_EZTNhF=A=+—8
IHFE - ZEBE  BURSEFHEEE -

AEERERNABHLRNELERAENR  Z
Lo R THIR e B 5 kIR N L Ath FE A5 SR 0R K FE A
MIEZ BBREE MIRITERR AR ARHRE
ABEERE - RBREMBRCERBELL

the reporting periods was as follows: AT
The Group The Company
rEE bINE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF —E-2F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT THERT AT
Trade and other payables  JEfNE ZFIE N
HAth ST FRIR 31,488 22,510 5,088 2,074
Tax payable R FRTE 12,642 10,839 - -
Less: Cash and B B RIRTT
bank balances 5k (75,720) (33,228) (47,104) (18,789)
(31,590) 121 (42,016) (16,715)
Equity attributable to [SYNCIETZS PN
owners of the parent (M 651,254 356,276 576,739 288,334
Gearing ratio BARABHLE N/A N/A N/A
TiE A 0.03% FEA TEA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BiZ=—Z—ZF=HA=1+—HILFE

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

In addition to the events happened after the reporting
period and disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, a summary of events happened after
the reporting period is set out below:

(a) Placing of shares

On 8 March 2010, the Company and Chung Nam
Securities Limited (“CNSL"), a placing agent entered into
a placing agreement pursuant to which CNSL conditionally
agreed to place an aggregate of 109,184,800 placing
shares at a price of HK$0.99. The placing was completed
on 28 April 2010.

(b) Bonus issue of shares

The directors of the Company have recommended a bonus
issue of three new shares, credited as fully paid, for every
two shares held by the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 29 July 2010 and subject to the following
conditions: (i) the passing by the shareholders of the
Company at a special general meeting of an ordinary
resolution approving the bonus issue; and (i) the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange agreeing to grant the
approval for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the
bonus shares to be issued pursuant to the bonus issue.
Such bonus shares credited as fully paid will rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing issued shares of the
Company.
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38. HEHKRER

BRREMRBEZFEARANGEM BRI AL
MOPIREEIN  RERRBELECFEAREH
SR

(a) EERH

R-ZE—ZTF=ANH AQRHEEEKEH
M HaRAR ([FELHE]) SIS HaE
Bt PEALSAEKEHREZ0.998 T 2B
BECE S $£109,184,800 K EL Ei% (D - BEEE R
—ZET-ZTFEMA-+N\HZK °

(b) BITAR

ARAREFRCREZAAN _T—TFLA-TAN
BEIANRBRREM AR A BRREITA
B BRA MR D R = RARIIERUR
Bty - AR TIHRERR : ()RR BBRRR
BRENAE BB EBRERMLELRE
17 RN ETER E@REIERBEAK
BB TERTAB LT REE - ZF AR
TERR < IS ES T HEARRRIRAE B BT
B EFERFEA -



Financial Summary

PEBE
RESULTS ¥E
Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HILLEE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
“TTAF —TTLF —TT/\F —TTHAF —B-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THIT T FHEIT F# T
(restated)
&=27))
Turnover B R 209,396 232,496 148,455 134,872 241,871
Profit (loss) before taxation FianaF (E1E) 16,194 14,851 (229,284)  (343,832) 110,507
Income tax expenses FTiSHi A > (3,452) (4,546) (3,504) (1,458) (1,657)
Profit (loss) for the year NEEHEF) (BEE) 12,742 10,305  (232,788)  (345,290) 108,850
Attributable to: e :
Equity holders of R AR
the Company BBEA 12,472 10,540  (232,808)  (345,273) 108,631
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR RE S 270 (235) 20 (17) 219
12,742 10,305  (232,788)  (345,290) 108,850
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
At 31 March
R=A=+—H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—BERFE —TT+F —FTE)/\F —_TTNNGF ZB-=2F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T FHEIT FHxT
Total assets BEMRE 248,722 345222 650,445 393,070 699,090
Total liabilities BEEsE (54,943)  (105,669) (40,924) (33,349) (44,172)
193,779 239,553 609,521 359,721 654,918
Equity attributable to equity N2 RIMAER B A
holders of the Company  fE{5# 190,574 236,515 606,121 356,276 651,254
Non-controlling interests eI b = 3,205 3,038 3,400 3,445 3,664
193,779 239,553 609,521 359,721 654,918
2008 turnover figure has been restated to present (i) “TEENFEEBHYFETLEEY  UER ()

interest income from loan receivables and (ii) net gains

EWERF BWA K (i) HERQFET AR

or losses from the sales of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (but not the proceeds from the
sales of investments previously presented as turnover) as
components of turnover.

Bk e WHEE WaERFE (BETEHE
BENEXBERLEREMSHIA) ER
SERBH—BD o
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Particulars of Investment Properties

REWEFR

Location

I B

Lease term

B

Group's interest

REE Z R

Type
el

PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA
PEARKNER

A portion of the factory complex
situated at Lot No. 14-03-129
Hui Shan Expressway

Pingtan Town

Huiyang County

Huizhou

Guangdong Province

BR4E

BN

B5 %

B E

BSED
14-03-1295%
HEE 2 TIRER A
EEMH D

Units 1502 and 1503 on level 15
Pacific Trade Building

Jia Bin Road

Shenzhen

Guangdong Province

BRE

YT

RERK

KNEFEEKRE
15421502 % 1503 %

Medium-term lease

R EAFE AT

Medium-term lease

R EAFE AT

Mascotte Holdings Limited SHTEEE AR /A5 ® Annual Report 2010 3R

90%

100%

Commercial

CES

Commercial

[GES



MASCOTTE HOLDINGS LIMITED
SHBSERIRATD



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高層管理人員簡介
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收入報表
	綜合財務狀況表
	財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	財務概要
	投資物業詳情
	封底 

